
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

November 16, 2021
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.
 

9:00 a.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           

1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

1. 1. Presentation by legal counsel of draft illustrative plan redistricting the City Councilmember
Districts based on recently issued 2020 Census data

  

 

1. 2. The City Council will hear Citizen Comments on redistricting. Per Resolution No.
2021-R0410, any proposed redistricting plans and citizen comments must be submitted in
writing and be legible, even if the person also makes the comments orally during the Citizen
Comment period. Redistricting plans can be submitted to either ocs@mylubbock.us or by the
conclusion of the Citizen Comment period. The Citizen Comment form can be found here: 
mylubbock.us/redistricting2021. 

  

 

1. 3. Discussion by the City Council of the draft redistricting plan and amendments, if necessary,
to develop a redistricting plan for future adoption

  

 

At the completion of Item 1.3., the City Council recesses until 3:00 p.m.

3:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Work Session in City Council Chambers.
 

1. 4. Fiscal Year End Finance Update and Report   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session

http://ocs@mylubbock.us
http://mylubbock.us/redistricting2021


At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session
 

2. Executive Session   

 

2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

2. 1. 1. Redistricting for the City   

 

2. 1. 2. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

2. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

2. 2. 2. Loop 88 Land Acquisition   

 

2. 2. 3. Lake 7   

 

2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Community Development & Services Board, Urban Design/Historic Preservation
Commission, Urban Renewal/Neighborhood Redevelopment Commission, Water Board of
Appeals and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

3. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

3. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in Support of Home Health and Hospice Month   

 



3. 4. Board Recognitions:
Airport Board
Eddie Harris
 
Building Board of Appeals
Alex Cardenas
 
Citizens Traffic Commission
Leslie Landeros
 
Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board
Robert Bichard
Mark Branscome
Robbie Moon

Planning & Zoning Commission
Brandon Hardaway
 
Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission
Deborah Bigness
 
Water Board of Appeals
Dennis Carrizales

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on November 16, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. September 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Transportation Policy Committee
September 22, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development
Alliance
October 26, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0153,
abandoning and closing a 2-foot Underground Street Light Cable Easement located along the
east side of Lot 328, Hatton Place Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, at 3721 116th Street.

 



 

6. 2. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
portion of an alley right-of-way located in Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

6. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
General Warranty Deed from Day Estates, LTD, in connection with the acceptance by the
City of Lubbock of certain real property known as Tract D, Day Estates Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas for purposes related to a Storm Water Detention Basin.

 

6. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept on behalf
of the City of Lubbock, three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections 26 and
30, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway
Expansion Project.

 

6. 5. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Advanced Funding Agreement Contract 15496, with the Texas
Department of Transportation, for reimbursement of construction related expenses for
widening 114th Street, from Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue.

 

6. 6. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16180, with HDR Engineering, Inc., for design services associated with the Erskine Street
Improvements Project.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15923, with Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., for construction services for the Upland Avenue
Water Line Relocation.

 

6. 8. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing an East-Side Grant
Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Lee's PDR, LLC,
pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock
Economic Development Alliance. 

 

6. 9. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a program or
expenditure of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, to be provided to BASF
Corporation, Inc., pursuant to Section 501.073 of the Texas Local Government Code.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 25300004, with Oshkosh Airport Products, LLC, for the Aircraft Rescue and Fire
Fighting Vehicle at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 11. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16053, with The Wilson Group, Inc., for glass replacement at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 3 to Contract 12643, with Environmental Systems Research
Institute, Inc. (Esri), in the amount of $1,235,000, for Geographic Information Systems (GIS)
software and services.



 

6. 13. Resolutions - Fleet Services: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16246 with Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co., and Contract 16166 with
B-King Ventures, LLC dba Clear-Vu Auto Glass, for windshield and window replacement
services for City of Lubbock vehicles and equipment.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31062734, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 052417, with Romco
Equipment Company, for the purchase of an M30 Concrete Truck, for the Water Department.

 

6. 15. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31062840, with Deere & Company, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract
031121-DAC, for the purchase of a John Deere 9009A TerrainCut Rough Mower, for the
Park Maintenance Department.  

 

6. 16. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31062880, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 122017-EXP, with
Madvac, Inc., for the purchase of 4 LP61-G Portable Litter Vacuums, for the Parks
Maintenance Department.

 

6. 17. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an acceptance
of the FY2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant Program, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the United States Department of Justice, and the Office of the Attorney General.

 

6. 18. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an interlocal
agreement with Lubbock County, Texas, allocating and transferring 50% of the City's Justice
Assistance Grant (JAG) award, under the FY2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant
Program, to Lubbock County, in order to fund the Lubbock County Joint Enforcement
Initiative.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0155, for Zone Case
1624-A, a request of OJD Engineering, LLC for SDIRA Wealth, for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A),
at: 2405 North Avenue N, located north of Wabash Street and east of North Avenue P, on
15.164 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 78. 

 

7. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0164, for Zone Case
1927-C, a request of Darcey Achin for Godbold Multi Arts, Inc., for a zone change from
Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for an
Event Center, at 2601 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of University
Avenue, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 7, Lot 1 and the East 26.5 feet of Lot 2. 

 

7. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0156, for Zone Case



7. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0156, for Zone Case
2538-W, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located south of
4th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 73.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS,
Section 10. 

 

7. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0157, for Zone Case
2538-Y, a request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from Transition (T) and
Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 7311 34th Street, located south
of 34th Street and west of Upland Avenue, on 34.294 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 39. 

 

7. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0158, for Zone Case
2573-S, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for North Park Development, Inc., for a zone
change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) and General Retail District (C-3)
to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) at 316 and 401 North Winston Avenue, located
west of Winston Avenue and north of Auburn Street, on 15.65 acres of unplatted land out of
Block A, Section 22. 

 

7. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0159, for Zone Case
2895-Q, a request of Betenbough Homes, for a Specific Use for an Event Center, on property
zoned General Retail District (C-3), at 6305 82nd Street and 6303 82nd Street, Suite B,
located south of 82nd Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, Betenbough II Addition, Tracts
A and B1 and Betenbough Garden Office Addition, Tract A. 

 

7. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0160, for Zone Case
2918-B, a request of Seventeen Services, Inc. for Keith McNeese, for a zone change from
Garden Office District (GO) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 10701 Upland Avenue,
located east of Upland Avenue and north of 109th Street, Devonshire Estates Addition, Tract
A. 

 

7. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0161, for Zone Case
2952-D, a request of SPSM, LTD, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to
General Retail District (C-3), at 601 North Slide Road, located north of Erskine Street and
west of Slide Road, North Pointe Addition, Tract C. 

 

7. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0162, for Zone Case
3031-B, a request of SK Architecture Group for Nesloney Homes, for a zone change from
Garden Office District (GO) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 8309 Upland Avenue, located
east of Upland Avenue and south of 82nd Street, Westwood Addition, Lot 4. 

 

7. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0163, for Zone Case
3291-A, a request of OJD Engineering, LLC for John C. Owens, for a zone change from
Local Retail District (C-2) to Family Apartment District (A-1) at 1901 82nd Street, located
east of Avenue U and south of 82nd Street, on 3.82 acres of unplatted land out of Block E,
Section 9. 

 

7. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0154, for Zone Case



7. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0154, for Zone Case
3432-A, a request of Dwain Lane for Carolyn Lane Musgrave, for a Specific Use for an
Event Center, on property zoned Commercial District (C-4) and Local Retail District (C-2)
at 1801 19th Street and 1904 and 1906 Avenue R, located south of 19th Street and west of
Avenue R, Lane Addition, Block 1, Lots 1, 2, 5 and 6.

 

7. 12. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving the method of
assessment classification for the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District, and
calling for a public hearing on December 7, 2021.  

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 2. 3. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Community
Development & Services Board, Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission, Urban
Renewal/Neighborhood Redevelopment Commission, Water Board of Appeals and the Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 

Regular City Council Meeting 3. 4. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Recognitions:
Airport Board
Eddie Harris
 
Building Board of Appeals
Alex Cardenas
 
Citizens Traffic Commission
Leslie Landeros
 
Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board
Robert Bichard
Mark Branscome
Robbie Moon

Planning & Zoning Commission
Brandon Hardaway
 
Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission
Deborah Bigness
 
Water Board of Appeals
Dennis Carrizales

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
September 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Transportation Policy Committee
September 22, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
October 26, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
September 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Transportation Policy Committee
September 22, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
October 26, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
9.21.2021 S LMPO 
9.22.2021 S LEDA 
10.26.2021 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 21, 2021
8:30 A.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 21st of September, 2021,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 8:30 a.m.

  
8:36 A.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Jeff Griffith;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Latrelle
Joy; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

This was a meeting of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization's Transportation Policy Committee.
A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in discussions during the meeting in which the
Committee considered the following topics as shown below. Members of the Committee, in attendance, were:
Chair Curtis Parrish, Shelia Patterson Harris, Jeff Griffith, Chad Seay, Chris Mandrell, Daniel M. Pope,
Jarrett Atkinson, and Steve Warren.
  
Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 

1.1-1.8.8

1. REGULAR SESSION
 
1. 1. Safety Procedures

The Committee Chair, Judge Curtis Parrish, mentioned the safety procedures.
 
1. 2. Public Comment Period/Acknowledgment of Guests of the Transportation Policy Committee.

No one appeared to speak during the public comment period.

Chair Curtis Parrish welcomed guests, in attendance, representing Ports to Plains, the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, and TxDOT.

 
1. 3. The Committee will approve the minutes from the Transportation Policy Committee meeting of July

20, 2021. 

Motion by Jarrett Atkinson, seconded by Jeff Griffith, to approve the minutes from the
Transportation Policy Committee meeting of July 20, 2021. 



 
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried by the Committee

 
1. 4. The Committee will conduct an opportunity for the public to comment regarding Amendment No. 1

to the FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Amendment No. 9 to the
2012-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) regarding roadway and transit projects.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization; and Tammy
Walker, transportation planning tech with the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

Chair Curtis Parrish opened the public comment period at 8:41 a.m.

No one appeared to speak on this item.

Chair Curtis Parrish closed the public comment period at 8:43 a.m.
 
1. 5. Discuss and the Committee will take appropriate action concerning Resolution 2021-17 regarding

Amendment No.1 to the 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Amendment
No. 9 to the 2012-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee. 

Motion by Steve Warren, seconded by Chad Seay, to approve Resolution 2021-17.
 
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried by the Committee

 
1. 6. Discuss and the Committee will take appropriate action regarding Resolution 2021-16 approving an

updated 10-year Plan (2022-2031). 

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization; and Kylan
Francis, director of planning and development with TxDOT Lubbock, gave comments and answered
questions from the Committee. 

Motion by Daniel M. Pope, seconded by Jeff Griffith, to approve Resolution 2021-16. 
 
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried by the Committee

 
1. 7. Discuss the allocation of additional funding from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental

Appropriations Act (CRRSAA). FOR INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE
TAKEN.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 8. Reports
 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 21, 2021 Page 2 of 4



1. 8. 1. TxDOT Aviation sponsors Airport Workshop.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 8. 2. Federal Railroad Administration announces funding opportunity.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 8. 3. Present the 2022 Unified Transportation Program (UTP).

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 8. 4. Present TxDOT's Annual Long Range Revenue Forecast (2021-2045).

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 
1. 8. 5. TxDOT Call for Nominees for the Urban Air Mobility Subcommittee.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee. Chair Curtis Parrish nominated Jeff
Griffith to represent West Texas on the Urban Air Mobility Subcommittee.

 
1. 8. 6. State Demographic Center presentation.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning
Organization, announced that Dr. Lloyd Potter with the State Data Center will be present at the
October meeting and will present on local and regional demographics. 

 
1. 8. 7. New Chairperson for the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC).

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization,
introduced Michael Mangum, chief financial officer for Citibus, as the new chair of the
Transportation Advisory Committee.
 

 
1. 8. 8. Monthly Financial Report.

David Jones, executive director of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization, gave
comments and answered questions from the Committee.

 

9:07 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

Special City Council Meeting 
September 21, 2021 Page 3 of 4



9:07 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The September 21, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
16th day of November, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 21, 2021 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 22, 2021
8:30 A.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 22nd of September, 2021,
at the Wells Fargo Center, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas at 8:30 a.m.

  
8:36 A.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
Wells Fargo Center, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Suite 501, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; Deputy City
Secretary Courtney Paz; Assistant City Attorney Kelli Leisure 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff
Griffith 

 

This was a meeting of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors. A
quorum of Council Members attended and participated in discussions during the meeting in which the
board considered the following topics as shown below:
  
Note: The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (LEDA) Board of Directors addressed agenda

items in the following order:  
1.1; Executive Session
No quorum, of the City Council, was present for all other items.

1. MINUTES
 
1. 1. The Board will approve the Minutes of the LEDA Board of Directors Meeting of August 25, 2021. 

Motion by Brett Cate, seconded by John Opperman, to approve the minutes of the LEDA
Board of Directors Meeting of August 25, 2021.

Vote: 8-0 Motion carried by the Board

Other: Matt Bumstead (ABSENT)
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 8:37 a.m. under the provisions of Section 551,
Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 9:48 a.m. and
adjourned.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.087 to (1)



2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.087 to (1)
discuss or deliberate in regard to commercial or financial information that LEDA has received from
business prospects seeking to locate, stay or expand, in the Lubbock area, or, (2) to deliberate the
offer of a financial or other incentive to business prospects described in (1) above. This will include
the project and goals update, and monthly activity reports, quarterly reports of Kenny McKay,
Director of Business Retention, Carolyn Rowley of Director of Business Recruitment & Innovation,
and reports related to financial, budget, audit reports, and matters related to the Lubbock Business
Park, Lubbock Rail Port, and neighboring property and workforce/training projects.  Others may also
participate in this report including but not limited to, John Osborne, Jana Johnston, Christine Allen,
Katherine White, Katy Christy, Jorge Quirino, Rusty Smith, Andrew Sorrells, Chris Rankin, Mayor
Dan Pope, Mr. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager, members of City Council and Brianna Gerardi,
Director of Business Development with the City of Lubbock. 

 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.072 to deliberate

the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property.   
 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.071 to discuss

legal matters.
 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, goals, compensation, evaluation, reassignment of duties, discipline or
dismissal of employee(s) or to hear a complaint or charge against an employee(s).

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will consider a resolution to approve the August 2021 LEDA Financial Report.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation of project update and monthly activity reports for Workforce Development.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation of project update and monthly reports of Marketing and Communication activities.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. The Board will consider action, if needed, including the adoption of resolutions, to offer financial

and other incentives to business prospects or other matters considered in Executive Session and
ratification of performance agreements that have been approved by the Board.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. 1. The Board will consider a resolution to approve a Performance Agreement for Project Basil.

*This item was deleted.
 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 22, 2021 Page 2 of 4



3. 4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution to approve a Performance Agreement and a Purchase and
Sale Agreement for BASF.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. The Board will consider a resolution regarding the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Incentive Goals Plan for the

employees of Lubbock Economic Development Alliance.

*This item was deleted. 
 
3. 6. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on matters relating to the Lubbock

Business Park, Lubbock Rail Port and active projects, including but not limited to plans for current
and possible future uses of the land, zoning, platting, mapping, marketing, services and utilities to
and from the properties, and any other matters related to the possible uses of the land.  This
discussion and possible action on matters involving the properties may include but not be limited to
the following items:

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 1. Discuss and the Board will consider action, if needed, on property to be used for future

economic development opportunities.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 2. Discuss the current status of the plans for developing the parks.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 3. Discuss the current status of efforts to use the properties by businesses.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 4. Update on the progress of the properties and any matters related to contractors and/or contracts.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 5. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on possible financing options

for improvements to the properties.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. 6. Discussion and the Board will consider action, if needed, on proposed future development of

the properties with construction and engineering projects and related contracts, regarding
projects and the development at LEDA properties.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 7. Architectural Review Committee Report

Special City Council Meeting 
September 22, 2021 Page 3 of 4



3. 7. Architectural Review Committee Report

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. CEO Report

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. 1. Review LEDA Dashboard

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. 2. Employment Data Update

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 9. Chairman’s Report

*This item was deleted.
 

9:48 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The September 22, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
16th day of November, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
September 22, 2021 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

October 26, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 26th of October, 2021, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:08 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson
Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad
Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Randy Christian 
 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1; 2.1; Executive Session; 4.1-4.3.1; Citizen Comments 5; 6.1; 7.1-7.26;
8.1-8.8.

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.1 on the Work
Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 1:00
p.m. on October 26, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make
comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the
nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for
a response.

No one appeared to speak.
 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. COVID Grant Summary - Public Health Services, Community Development, Airport, Citibus

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council. Karen Murfee, director of community development; Katherine Wells, director
of public health; Kelly Campbell, executive director of aviation; and Chris Mandrell, general
manager of Citibus, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council on COVID
grant funds as they relate to Community Development, Public Health Services, the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport, and Citibus. Topics discussed included: the Coronavirus
Relief Fund (CRF); various assistance programs administered by state and federal agencies



related to Community Development; funds allocated for public health crisis response, the
infectious disease control unit, vaccination capacity, public health workforce, and health equity;
and assistance received by the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport and Citibus through
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, the Coronavirus Response
and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act (CRRSA), and the American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA). 

 
 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
3. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:08 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:56 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:03 p.m.

 
3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
3. 1. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 1. 2. Waivers for Utility Infrastructure Requirements (when platting land)
 
3. 1. 3. Connection Requirements to Water and Wastewater Infrastructure
 
3. 1. 4. Lot 305-A, Midway Park Addition
 
3. 1. 5. Lease Agreement No. GS-07P-LTX00024 between the City of Lubbock and the United

States of America
 
3. 1. 6. Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas Surgical Health Services, et al v. City of Lubbock,

Texas, Case No.5:21-cv-114 in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Texas, Lubbock Division

 
3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 2. 2. Lot 305-A, Midway Park Addition
 
3. 2. 3. Lease Agreement No. GS-07P-LTX00024 between the City of Lubbock and the United

States of America
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 2 of 10



3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:56 p.m.
 
4. Ceremonial Items
 
4. 1. Invocation

Minister Jim Brewer, South Plains Church of Christ, led the invocation.
 
4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.

 
4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations
 
4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of Chiropractic Health Awareness Month

Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale presented a Special Recognition in support of
Chiropractic Health Awareness Month. A representative of the Lubbock chiropractic
community gave comments on behalf of the American Chiropractic Association and the
Texas Chiropractic Association, and thanked the City Council and the Lubbock community
for their support of Chiropractic Health Awareness Month.

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:03 p.m.
 
5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on October 26, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an opportunity
for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any comment
received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

Sign ups: 

George Hardberger appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 8.6 (public
hearing regarding the proposed creation of the City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 3 of 10



Energy Program).

 
6. Minutes
 
6. 1. August 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board

September 28, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
September 29, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Parks Master Plan Open House
September 30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - TML Region 3 Regional Meeting

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale to

approve the August 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board minutes;
the September 28, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes; the September 29, 2021
Special City Council Meeting - Parks Master Plan Open House minutes; and the September
30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - TML Region 3 Regional Meeting minutes.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

 
7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve items 7.1-7.26. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

 
7. 1. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2021-R0414 expressing intent to finance expenditures to

be incurred for various capital projects and equipment, which were approved by the City Council
in the FY 2021-22 Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of
obligations that will be issued after the expenditure of funds, to pay costs of such projects and
equipment.

  

 
7. 2. Budget Amendment Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0148,

Amendment 2, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration
Section 5310 Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act Grant and
Airport Capital Fund, to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 92717,
replace Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF) Vehicle; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

  

 
7. 2. 1. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0415 authorizing the acts of the   

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 4 of 10



7. 2. 1. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0415 authorizing the acts of the
City Financial Officer, in ratifying FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration Section 5310
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act Grant, Project ID
TX-2021-106-00, for the mobility of elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities.

  

 
7. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0149, abandoning and closing

an easement, located in Lot 22A, Tanglewood Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, at 4601 23rd
Street.

  

 
7. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0150, abandoning and closing

a 20-foot alley right-of-way, located in Block 7, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County
Texas, at 5th Street and Avenue J.

  

 
7. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0416 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Parking Lease Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Cast Iron Grill, for the use of a
City-owned parking lot at 1801 Crickets Avenue.

  

 
7. 6. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2021-R0417 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Dedicatory Deed, associated Easements, and all related documents, in connection with property
described as Tract A, Milwaukee EST Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, located south of 104th
Street and west of Milwaukee Avenue.

  

 
7. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0418 ratifying the actions of the Mayor, in

executing Contract 16224, an agreement and related documents, with the Texas Water
Development Board (TWBD), for a grant utilizing TWBD Category 1 Flood Infrastructure Funds
(FIF) associated with the project Flood Protection Planning of Watersheds.

  

 
7. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0419 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Construction Service Contract 15944, with Garney Companies, Inc., for improvements at Pump
Station No. 4, including pumps, motors, and starters.

  

 
7. 9. Resolution - Public Works: Resolution No. 2021-R0420 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 1 to Contract 15875, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of
the brick paving project at the intersection of 13th Street and Texas Avenue.

  

 
7. 10. Resolution - Public Works: Resolution No. 2021-R0421 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Advanced Funding Agreement, Contract 16170, between the City of Lubbock and the State of
Texas, acting through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the Pedestrian and
Bicyclist Connectivity Project inside Loop 289, at various locations.

  

 
7. 11. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0422 authorizing the Mayor to execute the

Third Amendment to the Raw Water Lease, between the City of Lubbock and the Lake Alan
Henry Water Distr.

  

 
7. 12. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2021-R0423 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 5 of 10



7. 12. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2021-R0423 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 15344, with
Infrastructure Management Services, for an extension of time.

  

 
7. 13. Resolutions - Public Works Streets: Resolution No.'s 2021-R0424 and 2021-R0425 authorizing

the Mayor to execute Contract 16197, with MUDco Ready Mix, LLC, and Contract 16093, with
West Infrastructure Construction, LLC, to establish the annual pricing of concrete products.

  

 
7. 14. Ordinance 1st Reading - Traffic Management: Ordinance No. 2021-O0151, amending Section

20.05.103 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, with regard to school zones.
  

 
7. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0426 approving the Upland

Crossing Public Improvement District (PID) Board Bylaws, as reviewed and recommended by
the Upland Crossing PID Advisory Board.

  

 
7. 16. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0427 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16151, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community
Development Department and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the
Community Development Block Grant.

  

 
7. 17. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0428 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16152, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community
Development Department and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the
Emergency Solutions Grant.

  

 
7. 18. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0429 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16153, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community
Development Department and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the
Community Housing Development Organization.

  

 
7. 19. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2021-R0430 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 6 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for the Security Systems Upgrade at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
7. 20. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0431 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 15860, with Southern Tire Mart, LLC, for the supply of tires for Citibus
paratransit vans and staff support vehicles.

  

 
7. 21. Resolution - Health Benefits: Resolution No. 2021-R0432 authorizing the Mayor to execute the

renewal of Contract 14820, by and between the City of Lubbock and Dearborn National Life
Insurance, to enhance services by adding the SelerixBenSelect benefits administration system.

  

 
7. 22. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0433 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16057 with BFD Interiors, dba Built for Dreams, for purchase and installation
of furniture for the newly constructed Lubbock Power and Light GIS addition.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 6 of 10



7. 23. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0434 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31062145, with C&C Manufacturing, LLC, for the purchase of a new 2022 Aljon
Landfill Compactor, for Solid Waste Landfill.

  

 
7. 24. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2021-R0435 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 5 to the Lease Agreement, with Joyland Amusement Park, to extend the
term until December 31, 2021.

  

 
7. 25. Resolution - Civic Center: Resolution No. 2021-R0436 approving the recommendation from

the Cultural Arts Grant Review Committee and the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, for
the 2021 Live Music Performance Grant Program using Hotel Occupancy Tax funds collected at
the end of FY 2019-20.

  

 
7. 26. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2021-R0437 ratifying the Second

Amendment to the Master Sales Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock acting by and
through its Electric Utility Board and City Council, and Itron, Inc., regarding the installation,
maintenance, and support services relating to automatic meters and metering.

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2021-R0438 authorizing the City

Council to cast votes for candidates to the Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

Rebecca Garza, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0438 with 218 votes for Sonny Garza; 218 votes
for Brady Goen; 218 votes for Greg Jones; 218 votes for Bobby McQueen; and 217 votes
for Noe Reynolds. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

 
8. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board.   

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

reappoint Howard G. Thrash and David Zwiacher; and appoint Eddie Harris to replace
Grady Terrill. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

 
8. 3. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2021-O0152, reviewing   

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 7 of 10



8. 3. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2021-O0152, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Northwest Passage PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying 2022 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements
to be provided in the district during FY 2022-23; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Mont McClendon, with McDougal Properties, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:15 p.m.

Mont McClendon, with McDougal Properties, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:16 p.m.       

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0152. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris (AWAY) 

 
8. 4. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing for the City Council to

consider the creation of a Public Improvement District for Willow Bend Villas, which covers a
portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th
Street on the north, Kelsey Avenue on the east, and railroad tracks on the south and west.

Public Hearing only

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement: "City Council will hold a
public hearing to consider the creation of the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District.
This public hearing is required by the Texas Local Government Code."

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:23 p.m.

Ronnie Wallace, with Betenbough Homes, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:26 p.m.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 8 of 10



 
8. 5. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0439 making findings and

authorizing establishment of the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District (PID), which
covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded
by 19th Street on the north, Kelsey Avenue on the east, and railroad tracks on the south and west.

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0439. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

 
8. 6. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing regarding the proposed

creation of the City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

Public Hearing only

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement: "The Texas Local
Government Code requires a public hearing for the City Council to consider the creation of a
Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) program, at this time I will open the public hearing in
regard to the creation of the Lubbock PACE program."

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:32 p.m.

Josh Allen and Chris Harrington appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:36 p.m.

  

 
8. 7. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0440 to establish the City of

Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0440. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 9 of 10



 
8. 8. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0441 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16202, with Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority (Texas PACE
Authority), for administrative services for the City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy
Program (Lubbock City PACE).

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0441. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (ABSENT) 

 

5:40 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The October 26, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
16th day of November, 2021.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
October 26, 2021 Page 10 of 10



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0153, abandoning and
closing a 2-foot Underground Street Light Cable Easement located along the east side of Lot 328,
Hatton Place Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, at 3721 116th Street.

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a 2-foot Underground Street Light
Cable Easement, located along the east side of Lot 328 Hatton Place Addition.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance Abandon and Close a 2-foot Underground Street Light Cable Easement-Lot 328 Hatton Place 
Exhibit A - Closure of a 2-foot USLCE - Lot 328 Hatton Place 
Map - Abandon and Close a 2 foot USLCE - Lot 328 Hatton Place 







32
6

32
7

32
8

32
9

33
0

ALLEY

116TH STREET

TPE

S
.
0
1
°
4
7
'
5
2
"
W

.
 
1
2
0
.
0
0
'

THE NORTHEAST CORNER

OF HATTON PLACE, LOTS

308 THROUGH 338 BEARS

S.88°12'08"E. 404.50' AND

N.01°47'52"E. 67.45' FROM

THIS POINT.

NORTHING: 7,241,221.95

EASTING:       933,661.05

52' R-O-W (P&D 2021026076)

(P&D 2021026076)

 HATTON PLACE

LOTS 308 THROUGH 338

(P&D 2021026076)

 HATTON PLACE

LOTS 308 THROUGH 338

(P&D 2021026076)
35.25'

35.25'

35.25'

35.25'

35.25'

35.25'

2.0'

2'
 U

SE
-L

PL
, P

&
D

 2
02

10
26

07
6

(T
O

 B
E 

C
LO

SE
D

)

NORTH COMMON CORNER
OF LOTS 328 & 329

SOUTH COMMON CORNER
OF LOTS 328 & 329

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

Phone: 806-771-5976

Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPELS Reg. # 10178500

AMD Engineering, LLC

6515 68th Street, Suite 300

Lubbock, TX  79424

JOB NUMBER:
© 2021 ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

20557

ELS

CLOSURE & VACATION OF AN
UNDERGROUND STREET LIGHT CABLE EASEMENT

LOCATED IN THE EAST 2.00' OF LOT 328,
HATTON PLACE,

LOTS 308 THROUGH 338,
AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS
(ACCORDING TO THE MAP, PLAT AND/OR DEDICATION DEED RECORDED IN

COUNTY CLERK'S PLAT AND DEDICATION NUMBER 2021026076 OF
THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS)

LEGEND:

SCALE: 1" = 40'

HEAVY LINES INDICATE LIMITS OF SURVEY.

CCFN = COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NUMBER.

P&D = PLAT & DEDICATION NUMBER.

DRE = DRAINAGE EASEMENT.

LPL = LUBBOCK POWER & LIGHT.

R-O-W = RIGHT OF WAY.

SDD = STREET DEED DEDICATION.

SPEC = SOUTH PLAINS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE.

TPE = 4'x6' (MINIMUM) TRANSFORMER PAD EASEMENT (GRANTED TO SPEC),

 AS INDICATED BY SYMBOL        .

USE = UNDERGROUND STREET LIGHT CABLE EASEMENT (GRANTED TO LPL).

BEARINGS ARE RELATIVE TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983

(2011), TEXAS NORTH CENTRAL ZONE. THE CONVERGENCE ANGLE OF

-01°51'00.60" AND A COMBINED SCALE FACTOR OF 0.99975037.

COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS COORDINATE

SYSTEM OF 1983 (2011), TEXAS NORTH CENTRAL ZONE. DISTANCES ARE AT

SURFACE, IN U.S. SURVEY FEET.

ALL CORNERS MONUMENTED TEMPORARILY WITH A 2" X 2" HUB OR

PERMANENTLY WITH A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH CAP MARKED "AMD

ENGINEERING", UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

PREPARED: SEPTEMBER 16, 2021

PREPARED FROM THE RECORDED PLAT AND PREVIOUS SURVEYS IN THIS

AREA.

DESCRIPTION:

A CLOSURE AND VACATION OF AN UNDERGROUND STREET LIGHT CABLE EASEMENT, 2.00 FEET IN WIDTH

AND PREVIOUSLY GRANTED TO LUBBOCK, POWER AND LIGHT, BEING THE EAST 2.00 FEET OF LOT 328, SAID

LOT 328 PREVIOUSLY DEDICATED WITH THE PLAT OF HATTON PLACE, LOTS 308 THROUGH 338, AN

ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE MAP, PLAT AND/OR

DEDICATION DEED THEREOF RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK'S PLAT AND DEDICATION NUMBER 202026076

OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS.

10' 40'

20' 80'0'

NOTE: WIDTH OF 2' UNDERGROUND STREET LIGHT CABLE EASEMENT IS EXAGGERATED FOR CLARITY.

EXHIBIT A





 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a portion of an
alley right-of-way located in Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of a 20-foot alley located in
Section 1, Block AK, (CCFN #2020008834).  The alley right-of-way, upon closure, will be made part of
future Fire Station #20 at Geneva Avenue and 141st Street. An underground utility easement will remain
in its place for the infrastructure that has already been constructed. This is the alley located between the
South Patrol Division Station and future Fire Station #20.
  
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
 
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance Abandon and Close portion of an Alley right-of way- Section 1 Block AK 
Exhibit A - Closure Portion of Alley right-of-way Sec 1 Blk AK 
Map - Closure of Portion of Alley right-of-way- Sec 1 Blk AK 









TR A

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of a Portion of 20' Alley Dedication Deed
Located East of Tract A, Police Department South Substation Addition

0 100 20050
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

140TH ST
CITY LIMITS

40
0'

146TH ST

135TH ST

POLIC
E DEPARTMENT

SOUTH SUBSTATIO
N

Portion of 20' Alley to Remain Open
CCFN 2020008834

M
EM

PH
IS

 A
V

E

Exhibit A - Portion of 20' of Alley to be Closed
CCFN 2020008834

0.0987 ac

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

375'

20
0'

142ND ST

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

141ST ST

CITY LIMITS

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a General Warranty
Deed from Day Estates, LTD, in connection with the acceptance by the City of Lubbock of certain real
property known as Tract D, Day Estates Addition, Lubbock County, Texas for purposes related to a
Storm Water Detention Basin.

Item Summary
In June of 2002, developers Truitt Craft and James Pipkin requested the Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board consider the development of parkland in the vicinity of 98th Street and Frankford Avenue. The
development consisted of 360 acres. The topography in the area was fairly flat, therefore excavation was
required to accommodate water drainage. The linear area in the center of the proposed development was
planned for excavation. The soil that was removed from the basin was used to raise the ground
elevations of the surrounding lots and accommodate drainage.

The developers involved in the property showed an interest in developing the drainage basins as parks. It
was anticipated the basins would be dry over 98% of the year. Subsurface drainage would be constructed
to allow water to flow into the basins without damaging the turf. Recreation amenities such as playing
fields and open space could be constructed in the basin and walking tracks and other amenities could be
developed on top of the basins. The property north of 98th Street would provide adequate property
above the flood plain to develop park amenities such as a playground and pavilion. The Developers had
agreed to consider donating the land and funding improvements including the drainage, irrigation and
turf.

The Playa Lake Development Ordinance and Policy that was in effect at the time in Articles 30.04 and
38.06 of the Code of Ordinances, allows Developers to dedicate drainage basins as stormwater detention
basins or parks. If the basins are developed as parks, the property must meet the minimum requirements
set forth by the City of Lubbock Parks Master Plan or negotiated with the Parks and Recreation Board.
Improvements within the proposed Park area are to be negotiated and approved by the Parks and
Recreation Manager and the Parks and Recreation Board. Any irrigation systems, approved by the Parks
and Recreation Manager, are to be installed by the Owner/Developer prior to any vegetative cover being
placed around the lake area. Any variances to the policy elements required for a park are to be approved
in writing by the Parks and Recreation Board.

Mr. Craft and Mr. Pipkin stated that they were willing to give up some developable land, put in turf,
irrigation and other amenities to make the open space into parkland. The Parks and Recreation Board
approved a motion on June 25, 2002 to approve the concept that the drainage areas in the development in
the vicinity of 98th and Frankford be developed as park property with the Staffs recommended
conditions being met. The negotiated improvements included the site grading, installation of irrigation,
turf establishment and tree plantings. Developable land, above the flood plain, would be provided
adjacent to Iola Avenue and 95th Street.

Mr. Pipkin developed the property north of 98th Street and Mr. Craft and his partners developed the



property to the south.  The City Council accepted Mr. Craft's property on May 22, 2014. Mr. Pipkin is
requesting the Council accept the detention basin known as Tract D, Day Estates Addition. The site
grading and drainage improvements were completed. Mr. Pipkin installed the irrigation system,
planted 133 trees and planted grass seed.  Two water wells were drilled to supply water for the irrigation. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - General Warranty Deed - Day Estates LTD - Tract D Day Estates 
General Warranty Deed - Day Estates LTD - Tract D Day Estates 
Map - Day Estates 













 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept on behalf of the City
of Lubbock, three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections 26 and 30, Block AK,
Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway Expansion Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of Upland Avenue from 66th Street to 114th Street, the following street dedications
will allow for the construction of the proposed arterial. The parcels of land are located in Section 30,
Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas. The total consideration of $82,855, as valued in Appraisal Reports,
is subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.
  

Parcel Owner Acres Cost
Parcel 19 Charlie and Brenda Williamson 0.152 $29,700
Parcel 107 Karry Brunken 0.066 $20,190
Parcel 110 McGavock Land Company, LLC 0.110 $32,965

 TOTAL   0.328 $82,855

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the easement acquisition is $82,855 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92510
Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Section 26 and 30 Block AK 
Parcel 19 - Street Dedication Deed - Sec 19 Blk AK - Upland Avenue 
Parcel 107 - Street Dedication Deed - Sec 30 Blk AK - Upland Avenue 
Parcel 110 - Street Dedication Deed - Sec 30 Blk AK - Upland Avenue 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 























Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff Time 29,829$                      

Kimley Horn Contract No. 14034 1,180,000                   

Kimley Horn Amendment #1 1,373,400                   

TxDOT Construction Advandce Funding Agreement 948,931                      

TxDOT Design Advanced Funding Agreement 3,760                          

ROW Acqusition Parcels 69, 69A, 97, 98, 106 56,318                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 70, 71, 108 59,040                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 66 21,600                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 76, 114, 120 20,712                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 72 14,450                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 73 3,750                          

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 111 25,918                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 112 13,099                        

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 19 29,700                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 107 20,190                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 110 32,965                        

Encumbered/Expended to Date 3,833,662                   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

ROW Acquisition 502,258                      

Construction 2,024,391                   

Remaining Appropriation 2,526,649                   

Total Appropriation 6,360,311$                 

Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street

October 12, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92510



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This roadway is designated in the 2018 Master Thoroughfare Plan to become a modified principal arterial. This roadway is currently 

two lane strip paved. Development and growth in this area has resulted in this roadway exceeding the current capacity of the two lane 

structure. The first year of this project will fund the Environmental Study and Engineering Schematics for the Upland Avenue Corridor 

between 66th Street and 114th Street. The proposed second year will fund the Right-of-Way acquisition ahead of the improvements 

between 66th Street and 82nd Street. The proposed third year will fund the Engineering Design and Construction of a 5-lane roadway 

section that will include pedestrian elements, drainage, street lighting, and ADA compliance between 66th Street and 82nd Street. 

Bid Date - Design:7/4/2018

Award Date for Bid - Design:8/23/2018

Project Start Date - Design: 8/23/2018

Project End Date - Design:4/24/2023

Bid Date - Construction:10/2022

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 1/2023

Project Start Date - Construction: 3/2023

Project End Date - Construction: 3/2024

Project Justification

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of the Citizens of Lubbock. The City must continue to 

anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing population in order to provide a safe and efficient transportation system. Due to 

continued development in the area of Upland Avenue, this roadway has become congested and the road structure is requiring constant 

maintenance in order to safely serve the traveling public. The current construction of the Marsha Sharp Freeway and Upland Avenue 

intersection by the Texas Department of Transportation will only increase the need for these proposed improvements.

This project has MPO participation.

Project History

$2,470,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$448,687 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$3.6 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$841,624 was appropriated in FY 2019-20 Budget Amendment No. 2, Ord. No. 2019-O0146, October 22,2019.

Reduced appropriation by $1,000,000 in FY 2019-20, Budget Amendment No. 22, Ord. No. 2020-O0059, May 12, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

 Land Acquisition  448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

Construction  3,441,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,441,624 

Design and Engineering  1,700,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,700,000 

Right of Way Acquisition  770,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  770,000 

Total Project Appropriation  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2010 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

FY 2018 Gateway Streets CO's  2,470,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,470,000 

FY 2020 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 2,600,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,600,000 

FY 2022 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

TxDOT Participation  841,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  841,624 

Total Funding Sources  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to
Advanced Funding Agreement Contract 15496, with the Texas Department of Transportation, for
reimbursement of construction related expenses for widening 114th Street, from Quaker Avenue to
Indiana Avenue.

Item Summary
On September 22, 2020, the City Council authorized Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) Contract
15496 between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for
widening 114th Street from Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue.

Under Amendment No. 1, the City of Lubbock will reimburse TxDOT for the cost of relocating an
existing 16-inch water line from underneath a proposed culvert, during the construction of 114th Street
from Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue. The estimated total cost of the water line relocation project is
$126,400, of which an initial payment of $6,400 is due to the State, with the remaining $120,000 due
before commencing construction of the proposed water line relocation.  

Fiscal Impact
This contract amendment in the amount of $126,400 is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92737,
114th Street from Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 to AFA with TxDOT, 114th Street 
Original AFA 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail - CIP 92670 and CIP 92737 
CIP Detail - 92670 
CIP Detail - 92737 









































TxDOT:

CSJ # 0905-06-118

District# 05 Lubbock

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana

STATE OF TEXAS

Page 1 of 16

Federal Highway Administration:

CFDA No. 20.205

CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

__________ ___________

— AFA Not Used For Research &_Development

§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT
For

STP-MM Reconstruction Project
Off-System

THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through
the Texas Department of Transportation called the “State”, and the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through its duly authorized officials, called the “Local Government”. The State and Local Government
shall be collectively referred to as “the parties” hereinafter.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, federal law establishes federally funded programs for transportation improvements to
implement its public purposes, and

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code, Section 201.103 establishes that the State shall design,
construct and operate a system of highways in cooperation with local governments, and Section
222.052 authorizes the Texas Transportation Commission to accept contributions from political
subdivisions for development and construction of public roads and the state highway system within
the political subdivision, and

WHEREAS, federal and state laws require local governments to meet certain contract standards
relating to the management and administration of State and federal funds, and

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission has codified 43 TAC, Rules 15.50-1556 that
describe federal, state, and local responsibilities for cost participation in highway improvement and
other transportation projects, and

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission passed Minute Order Number 115550 authorizing
the State to undertake and complete a highway improvement or other transportation project generally
described as the construction of I f4th Street from Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue. The
portion of the project work covered by this Agreement is identified in the Agreement, Article 3, Scope
of Work (Project), and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Local Government has approved entering into this Agreement
by resolution, ordinance, or commissioners court order dated 09/22/2020, which is attached to and
made a part of this Agreement as Attachment A, Resolution, Ordinance, or Commissioners Court
Order (Attachment A). A map showing the Project location appears in Attachment B, Location Map
Showing Project (Attachment B), which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement.

AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



HxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

_CSJ# 0905-06-118 CFDANo. 20.205

_District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used ForResearch & Development

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and agreements
of the parties, to be by them respectively kept and performed as set forth in this Agreement, it is
agreed as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Responsible Parties:
For the Project covered by this Agreement, the parties shall be responsible for the following
work as stated in the article of the Agreement referenced in the table below:

1 N/A Utilities Article 8

2. NIA Environmental Assessment and Mitigation Article 9

3. N/A Architectural and Engineering Services Article 1 1

4. State Construction Responsibilities Article 12

5. NIA Right of Way and Real Property Article 14

2. Period of the Agreement
This Agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the
Agreement fully executed. This Agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed
or unless terminated as provided below.

3. Scope of Work
The scope of work for the Project consists of the construction of I j4th Street, from
Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue, widening of a non-freeway, in Lubbock, Texas as
shown on Attachment B.

4. Project Sources and Uses of Funds
The total estimated cost of the Project is shown in Attachment C, Project Budget
(Attachment C) which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement.
A. lithe Local Government will perform any work under this Agreement for which

reimbursement will be provided by or through the State, the Local Government must
complete training. If federal funds are being used, the training must be completed
before federal spending authority is obligated. Training is complete when at least one
individual who is working actively and directly on the Project successfully completes
and receives a certificate for the course entitled “Local Government Project Procedures
and Qualification for the Texas Department of Transportation” and retains qualification
in accordance with applicable TxDOT procedures. Upon request, the Local
Government shall provide the certificate of qualification to the State. The individual
who receives the training certificate may be an employee of the Local Government or
an employee of a firm that has been contracted by the Local Government to perform
oversight of the Project. The State in its discretion may deny reimbursement if the
Local Government has not continuously designated in writing a qualified individual to
work actively on or to directly oversee the Project.

Page 2 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ# 0905-06-118

District # 05 Lubbock

Code Chart 64# 25650

CFDA No. 20.205

CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Project Name J 14th Street- Quaker to Indiana — AFA Not Used For Research & Development

B. The expected cash contributions from the federal government, the State, the Local
Government, or other parties are shown in Attachment C. The State will pay for only
those Project costs that have been approved by the Texas Transportation Commission.
For projects with federal funds, the State and the federal government will not reimburse
the Local Government for any work performed before the federal spending authority is
formally obligated to the Project by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). After
federal funds have been obligated, the State will send to the Local Government a copy
of the formal documentation showing the obligation of funds including federal award
information. The Local Government is responsible for 100% of the cost of any work
performed under its direction or control before the federal spending authority is formally
obligated.

C. Attachment C shows, by major cost categories, the cost estimates and the party
responsible for performing the work for each category. These categories may include
but are not limited to: (1) costs of real property; (2) costs of utility work; (3) costs of
environmental assessment and remediation; (4) cost of preliminary engineering and
design; (5) cost of construction and construction management; and (6) any other local
project costs.

D. The State will be responsible for securing the federal and State share of the funding
required for the development and construction of the local Project. If the Local
Government is due funds for expenses incurred, these funds will be reimbursed to the
Local Government on a cost basis.

E. The Local Government will be responsible for all non-federal or non-State participation
costs associated with the Project, unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement or
approved otherwise in an amendment to this Agreement. For items of work subject to
specified percentage funding, the Local Government shall only in those instances be
responsible for all Project costs that are greater than the maximum State and federal
participation specified in Attachment C and for overruns in excess of the amount
specified in Attachment C to be paid by the Local Government.

F. The budget in Attachment C will clearly state all items subject to fixed price funding,
specified percentage funding, and the periodic payment schedule, when periodic
payments have been approved by the State.

G. When the Local Government bears the responsibility for paying cost overruns, the
Local Government shall make payment to the State within thirty (30) days from the
receipt of the State’s written notification of additional funds being due.

H. When fixed price funding is used, the Local Government is responsible for the fixed
price amount specified in Attachment C. Fixed prices are not subject to adjustment
unless (1) differing site conditions are encountered; (2) further definition of the Local
Government’s requested scope of work identifies greatly differing costs from those
estimated; (3) work requested by the Local Government is determined to be ineligible
for federal participation; or (4) the adjustment is mutually agreed to by the State and
the Local Government.
Prior to the performance of any engineering review work by the State, the Local
Government will pay to the State the amount specified in Attachment C. At a minimum,
this amount shall equal the Local Government’s funding share for the estimated cost of
preliminary engineering performed or reviewed by the State for the Project. At least
sixty (60) days prior to the date set for receipt of the construction bids, the Local

AFA LongGen
Page 3 of 16

Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

I CSJ # 0905-06-1 18

District # 05 Lubbock

Code Chart 64# 25650

CFDA No. 20.205

CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

[roject_Name 1 14th Street- Quaker to Indiana - AFA Not Used For Research & Development

Government shall remit its remaining financial share for the State’s estimated
construction oversight and construction cost.

J. The State will not execute the contract for the construction of the Project until the
required funding has been made available by the Local Government in accordance
with this Agreement.

K. Whenever funds are paid by the Local Government to the State under this Agreement,
the Local Government shall remit a check or warrant made payable to the “Texas
Department of Transportation” or may use the State’s Automated Clearing House
(ACH) system for electronic transfer of funds in accordance with instructions provided
by TxDOT’s Finance Division. The funds shall be deposited and managed by the State
and may only be applied by the State to the Project.

L. The State will not pay interest on any funds provided by the Local Government.
M. If a waiver for the collection of indirect costs for a service project has been granted

under 43 TAC §15.56, the State will not charge the Local Government for the indirect
costs the State incurs on the Project, unless this Agreement is terminated at the
request of the Local Government prior to completion of the Project.

N. If the Local Government is an Economically Disadvantaged County (EDC) and if the
State has approved adjustments to the standard financing arrangement, this
Agreement reflects those adjustments.

0. Where the Local Government is authorized to perform services under this Agreement
and be reimbursed by the State, the Local Government is authorized to submit
requests for reimbursement by submitting the original of an itemized invoice, in a form
and containing all items required by the State, no more frequently than monthly and no
later than ninety (90) days after costs are incurred. If the Local Government submits
invoices more than ninety (90) days after the costs are incurred and if federal funding is
reduced as a result, the State shall have no responsibility to reimburse the Local
Government for those costs.

P. Upon completion of the Project, the State will perform a final accounting of the Project
costs for all items of work with specified percentage funding. Any funds due by the
Local Government, the State, or the federal government for these work items will be
promptly paid by the owing party.

Q. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds
from the State directly under this Agreement or indirectly through a subcontract under
this Agreement. Acceptance of funds directly under this Agreement or indirectly
through a subcontract under this Agreement acts as acceptance of the authority of the
state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit
or investigation in connection with those funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit
or investigation must provide the state auditor with access to any information the state
auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit.

R. Payment under this Agreement beyond the end of the current fiscal biennium is subject
to availability of appropriated funds. If funds are not appropriated, this Agreement shall
be terminated immediately with no liability to either party.

5. Termination of This Agreement
This Agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed and accepted by all
parties, unless:

AFA LongGen
Page 4 of 16

Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

• CSJ# 0905-06-118

District # 05 Lubbock

Code Chart64# 25650

LroJect_Name 4th Street- Quaker to Indiana — AFA Not Used For Research & Development

A. The Agreement is terminated in writing with the mutual consent of the parties;
B. The Agreement is terminated by one party because of a breach, in which case any

costs incurred because of the breach shall be paid by the breaching party;
C. The Local Government elects not to provide funding after the completion of preliminary

engineering, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) and the Project does not proceed
because of insufficient funds, in which case the Local Government agrees to reimburse
the State for its reasonable actual costs incurred during the Project; or

D. The Agreement is terminated by the State because the parties are not able to execute
a mutually agreeable amendment when the costs for Local Government requested
items increase significantly due to differing site conditions, determination that Local
government requested work is ineligible for federal or state cost participation, or a more
thorough definition of the Local Government’s proposed work scope identifies greatly
differing costs from those estimated. The State will reimburse Local Government
remaining funds to the Local Government within ninety (90) days of termination; or

E. The Project is inactive for thirty-six (36) consecutive months or longer and no
expenditures have been charged against federal funds, in which case the State may in
its discretion terminate this Agreement.

6. Amendments
Amendments to this Agreement due to changes in the character of the work, terms of the
Agreement, or responsibilities of the parties relating to the Project may be enacted through a
mutually agreed upon, written amendment.

7. Remedies
This Agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any agreement
default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by either party to this
Agreement and shall be cumulative.

8. Utilities
The party named in Article 1, Responsible Parties, under AGREEMENT shall be responsible
for the adjustment, removal, or relocation of utility facilities in accordance with applicable state
laws, regulations, rules, policies, and procedures, including any cost to the State of a delay
resulting from the Local Government’s failure to ensure that utility facilities are adjusted,
removed, or relocated before the scheduled beginning of construction. The Local Government
will not be reimbursed with federal or State funds for the cost of required utility work. The
Local Government must obtain advance approval for any variance from established
procedures. Before a construction contract is let, the Local Government shall provide, at the
State’s request, a certification stating that the Local Government has completed the
adjustment of all utilities that must be adjusted before construction is commenced.

9. Environmental Assessment and Mitigation
Development of a transportation project must comply with the National Environmental Policy
Act and the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, which require environmental clearance
of federal-aid projects. The party named in Article 1, Responsible Parties, under
AGREEMENT is responsible for the following:

Page 5 of 16

CFDA No. 20.205

CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

‘ Project Name 1 14th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

A. The identification and assessment of any environmental problems associated with the
development of a local project governed by this Agreement.

B. The cost of any environmental problem’s mitigation and remediation.
C. Providing any public meetings or public hearings required for the environmental

assessment process. Public hearings will not be held prior to the approval of the
Project schematic.

D. The preparation of the NEPA documents required for the environmental clearance of
this Project.

lithe Local Government is responsible for the environmental assessment and mitigation,
before the advertisement for bids, the Local Government shall provide to the State written
documentation from the appropriate regulatory agency or agencies that all environmental
clearances have been obtained.

10. Compliance with Accessibility Standards
All parties to this Agreement shall ensure that the plans for and the construction of all projects
subject to this Agreement are in compliance with standards issued or approved by the Texas
Department of Licensing and Regulation (TDLR) as meeting or consistent with minimum
accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336) (ADA).

11. Architectural and Engineering Services
The party named in Article 1, Responsible Parties, under AGREEMENT has responsibility for
the performance of architectural and engineering services. The engineering plans shall be
developed in accordance with the applicable State’s Standard Specifications for Construction
and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges and the special specifications and special
provisions related to it. For projects on the State highway system, the design shall, at a
minimum conform to applicable State manuals. For projects not on the State highway system,
the design shall, at a minimum, conform to applicable American Association of State Highway
and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) design standards.

In procuring professional services, the parties to this Agreement must comply with federal
requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 172 if the Project is federally funded and with Texas
Government Code 2254, Subchapter A, in all cases. Professional contracts for federally
funded projects must conform to federal requirements, specifically including the provision for
participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), ADA, and environmental
matters. If the Local Government is the responsible party, the Local Government shall submit
its procurement selection process for prior approval by the State. All professional services
contracts must be reviewed and approved by the State prior to execution by the Local
Government.

12. Construction Responsibilities
The party named in Article 1, Responsible Parties, under AGREEMENT is responsible for the
following:
A. Advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive and tabulate the bids, and

award and administer the contract for construction of the Project. Administration of the
contract includes the responsibility for construction engineering and for issuance of any

Page 6 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



CSJ# 0905-06-118

District # 05 Lubbock

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name 4th Street- Quaker to Indiana

CFDA No. 20.205

CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

AFA Not Used For Research & Development

change orders, supplemental agreements, amendments, or additional work orders that
may become necessary subsequent to the award of the construction contract. In order
to ensure federal funding eligibility, projects must be authorized by the State prior to
advertising for construction.

B. If the State is the responsible party, the State will use its approved contract letting and
award procedures to let and award the construction contract.

C. If the Local Government is the responsible party, the Local Government shall submit its
contract letting and award procedures to the State for review and approval prior to
letting.

D. If the Local Government is the responsible party, the State must concur with the low
bidder selection before the Local Government can enter into a contract with the vendor.

E. If the Local Government is the responsible party, the State must review and approve
change orders.

F. Upon completion of the Project, the party responsible for constructing the Project will
issue and sign a “Notification of Completion” acknowledging the Project’s construction
completion and submit certification(s) sealed by a professional engineer(s) licensed in
the State of Texas.

G. For federally funded contracts, the parties to this Agreement will comply with federal
construction requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 635 and with requirements cited in 23
CFR Part 633, and shall include the latest version of Form “FHWA-1273” in the
contract bidding documents. If force account work will be performed, a finding of cost
effectiveness shall be made in compliance with 23 CFR 635, Subpart B.

13. Project Maintenance
The Local Government shall be responsible for maintenance of locally owned roads and
locally owned facilities after completion of the work. The State shall be responsible for
maintenance of the State highway system after completion of the work if the work was on the
State highway system, unless otherwise provided for in existing maintenance agreements with
the Local Government.

14. Right of Way and Real Property
The party named in Article 1, Responsible Parties, under AGREEMENT is responsible
for the provision and acquisition of any needed right of way or real property.

The Local Government shall be responsible for the following:
A. Right of way and real property acquisition shall be the responsibility of the Local

Government. Title to right of way and other related real property must be acceptable to
the State before funds may be expended for the improvement of the right of way or real
property.

B. If the Local Government is the owner of any part of the Project site under this
Agreement, the Local Government shall permit the State or its authorized
representative access to occupy the site to perform all activities required to execute the
work.

C. All parties to this Agreement will comply with and assume the costs for compliance with
all the requirements of Title II and Title III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, Title 42 U.S.C.A. Section 4601 et seq.,

Page 7 of 16

TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



_TxDOT:
— Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

CodeChart64# 25650

Project Name i J4th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

including those provisions relating to incidental expenses incurred by the property
owners in conveying the real property to the Local Government and benefits applicable
to the relocation of any displaced person as defined in 49 CFR Section 24.2(g).
Documentation to support such compliance must be maintained and made available to
the State and its representatives for review and inspection.

D. The Local Government shall assume all costs and perform necessary requirements to
provide any necessary evidence of title or right of use in the name of the Local
Government to the real property requited for development of the Project. The evidence
of title or rights shall be acceptable to the State, and be free and cleat of all
encroachments. The Local Government shall secure and provide easements and any
needed rights of entry over any other land needed to develop the Project according to
the approved Project plans. The Local Government shall be responsible for securing
any additional real property required for completion of the Project.

E. In the event real property is donated to the Local Government alter the date of the
State’s authorization, the Local Government will provide all documentation to the State
regarding fair market value of the acquired property. The State will review the Local
Government’s appraisal, determine the lair market value and credit that amount
towards the Local Government’s financial share. If donated property is to be used as a
funding match, it may not be provided by the Local Government. The State will not
reimburse the Local Government for any real property acquired before execution of this
Agreement and the obligation of federal spending authority.

F. The Local Government shall prepare real property maps, property descriptions, and
other data as needed to properly describe the real property and submit them to the
State for approval prior to the Local Government acquiring the real property. Tracings
of the maps shall be retained by the Local Government for a permanent record.

G. The Local Government agrees to make a determination of property values for each real
property parcel by methods acceptable to the State and to submit to the State a
tabulation of the values so determined, signed by the appropriate Local Government
representative. The tabulations shall list the parcel numbers, ownership, acreage and
recommended compensation. Compensation shall be shown in the component parts
of land acquired, itemization of improvements acquired, damages (if any) and the
amounts by which the total compensation will be reduced if the owner retains
improvements. This tabulation shall be accompanied by an explanation to support the
determined values, together with a copy of information or reports used in calculating all
determined values. Expenses incurred by the Local Government in performing this
work may be eligible for reimbursement after the Local Government has received
written authorization by the State to proceed with determination of real property values.
The State will review the data submitted and may base its reimbursement for parcel
acquisitions on these values.

H. Reimbursement for real property costs will be made to the Local Government for real
property purchased in an amount not to exceed eighty percent (80%) of the cost of the
real property purchased in accordance with the terms and provisions of this
Agreement. Reimbursement will be in an amount not to exceed eighty percent (80%)
of the State’s predetermined value of each parcel, or the net cost of the parcel,
whichever is less. In addition, reimbursement will be made to the Local Government
for necessary payments to appraisers, expenses incurred in order to assure good title,

Page 8 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



_TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

and costs associated with the relocation of displaced persons and personal property as
well as incidental expenses.

I. If the Project requires the use of real property to which the Local Government will not
hold title, a separate agreement between the owners of the real property and the Local
Government must be executed prior to execution of this Agreement. The separate
agreement must establish that the Project will be dedicated for public use for a period
of not less than 10 (ten) years after completion. The separate agreement must define
the responsibilities of the parties as to the use of the real property and operation and
maintenance of the Project after completion. The separate agreement must be
approved by the State prior to its execution. A copy of the executed agreement shall
be provided to the State.

15. Insurance
If this Agreement authorizes the Local Government or its contractor to perform any work on
State right of way, before beginning work, the entity performing the work shall provide the
State with a fully executed copy of the State’s Form 1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the
existence of coverage in the amounts and types specified on the Certificate of Insurance for all
persons and entities working on State right of way. This coverage shall be maintained until all
work on the State right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on State
right of way shall cease immediately, and the State may recover damages and all costs of
completing the work.

16. Notices
All notices to either party shall be delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail,
postage prepaid, addressed to that party at the following address:

Local Government: State:

City of Lubbock Texas Department of Transportation
ATTN: City Engineer ATTN: Director of Contract Services
P.O. Box 2000 125 E. 11th Street
Lubbock, TX 79457 Austin, TX 78701

All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered in person or deposited in the mail,
unless otherwise provided by this Agreement. Either party may change the above address by
sending written notice of the change to the other party. Either party may request in writing that
notices shall be delivered personally or by certified U.S. mail, and that request shall be carried
out by the other party.

17. Legal Construction
If one or mote of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability
shall not affect any other provisions and this Agreement shall be construed as if it did not
contain the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision.

Page 9 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



_TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

_District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

_Code Chart 64 # 25650

Lject Name__- 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

18. Responsibilities of the Parties
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or
employee of the other party, and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and
agents.

19. Ownership of Documents
Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared by the State shall
remain the property of the State. All data and information prepared under this Agreement shall
be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further use. All
documents produced or approved or otherwise created by the Local Government shall be
transmitted to the State, in the format directed by the State, on a monthly basis or as required
by the State. The originals shall remain the property of the Local Government.

20. Compliance with Laws
The parties to this Agreement shall comply with aH federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative
bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting the performance of this Agreement. When
required, the Local Government shall furnish the State with satisfactory proof of this
compliance.

21. Sole Agreement
This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties and supersedes
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the Agreement’s subject
matter.

22. Cost Principles
In order to be reimbursed with federal funds, the parties shall comply with the cost principles
established in 2 CFR 200 that specify that all reimbursed costs are allowable, reasonable, and
allocable to the Project.

23. Procurement and Property Management Standards
The parties to this Agreement shall adhere to the procurement and property management
standards established in 2 CFR 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and to the Texas Uniform Grant Management
Standards. The State must pre-approve the Local Government’s procurement procedures for
purchases to be eligible for state or federal funds.

24. Inspection of Books and Records
The parties to this Agreement shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting
records, and other documentation relating to costs incurred under this Agreement and shall
make such materials available to the State, the Local Government, and, if federally funded, the
FHWA and the U.S. Office of the Inspector General or their duly authorized representatives for
review and inspection at its office during the Agreement period and for seven (7) years from
the date of final reimbursement by FHWA under this Agreement or until any impending
litigation or claims are resolved. Additionally, the State, the Local Government, and the FHWA

Page 10 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



_TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

I CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

_District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

_CodeChart64# 25650

Lject_Name 114thStreet Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to all the governmental records
that are directly applicable to this Agreement for the purpose of making audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcriptions.

25. Civil Rights Compliance
The parties to this Agreement are responsible tor the following:
A. Compliance with Regulations: Both parties will comply with the Acts and the

Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S.
Department of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA),
as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference
and made part of this Agreement.

B. Nondiscrimination: The Local Government, with regard to the work performed by it
during the Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of
materials and leases of equipment. The Local Government will not participate directly
or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including
employment practices when the Agreement covers any activity, project, or program set
forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Local
Government for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of
materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be
notified by the Local Government of the Local Government’s obligations under this
Agreement and the Acts and Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination on the grounds
of race, color, or national origin.

D. Information and Reports: The Local Government will provide all information and reports
required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto, and will
permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and
facilities as may be determined by the State or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain
compliance with such Acts, Regulations or directives. Where any information required
of the Local Government is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses
to furnish this information, the Local Government will so certify to the State or the
FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the
information.

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Local Government’s noncompliance
with the Nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the State will impose such
contract sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but
not limited to:
1. withholding of payments to the Local Government under the Agreement until the

Local Government complies and/or
2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending of the Agreement, in whole or in part.

F. Incorporation of Provisions: The Local Government will include the provisions of
paragraphs (A) through (F) in every subcontract, including procurement of materials
and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives
issued pursuant thereto. The Local Government will take such action with respect to
any subcontract or procurement as the State or the FHWA may direct as a means of

Page 11 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

j CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

_District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

_CodeChart64# 25650

Lroject_Name fj4th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the
Local Government becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a
subcontractor or supplier because of such direction, the Local Government may
request the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State. In
addition, the Local Government may request the United States to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

26. Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities
During the performance of this Agreement, each party, for itself, its assignees, and successors
in interest agree to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities:
including but not limited to:
A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964(42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (pro

hibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin): and 49 CFR Part 21.
B. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970,

(42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property
has been acquired because of federal or federal-aid programs and projects).

C. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex).

D. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.) as amended,
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability): and 49 CFR Part 27.

E. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age).

F. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. Chapter 471, Section 47123),
as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or
sex).

G. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope,
coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by
expanding the definition of the terms ‘programs or activities” to include all of the
programs or activities of the federal-aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors,
whether such programs or activities are federally funded or not).

H. Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private
transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities
(42 U.S.C. § 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation
regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38.

I. The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex).

J. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against
minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority
and low-income populations.

K. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with

Page 12 of 16

]

AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

Cs] # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction
Code Chart 64# 25650

Project Name 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana — AFA Not Used For Research & Development

Title VI, the parties must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to the programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100).

L. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits the parties
from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681
et seq.).

27. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DEE) Program Requirements
If federal funds are used:
A. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program

requirements established in 49 CFR Part 26.
B. The Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, the State’s federally approved DBE

program.
C. The Local Government shall incorporate into its contracts with subproviders an

appropriate DBE goal consistent with the State’s DBE guidelines and in consideration
of the local market, project size, and nature of the goods or services to be acquired.
The Local Government shall submit its proposed scope of services and quantity
estimates to the State to allow the State to establish a DBE goal for each Local
Government contract with a subprovider. The Local Government shall be responsible
for documenting its actions.

D. The Local Government shall follow all other parts of the State’s DBE program
referenced in TxDOT Form 2395, Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the
Adoption of the Texas Department of Transportation’s Federally-Approved
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by Entity, and attachments found at web address
http://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub!txdot-info/bop/dbe!mou/mou attachments. pdf.

E. The Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin,
or sex in the award and performance of any U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)-
assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49
CFR Part 26. The Local Government shall take all necessary and reasonable steps
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure non-discrimination in award and administration of
DOT-assisted contracts. The State’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26
and as approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference in this Agreement.
Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms
shall be treated as a violation of this Agreement. Upon notification to the Local
Government of its failure to carry out its approved program, the State may impose
sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer
the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and the Program Fraud Civil
Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

F. Each contract the Local Government signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the
prime contractor signs with a sub-contractor) must include the following assurance:
The contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor
shall catty out applicable requirements of 49 CER Pad 26 in the award and
administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these
requirements is a material breach of this Agreement, which may result in the
termination of this Agreement or such other remedy as the recipient deems
appropriate.

AFA LongGen
Page 13 of 16

Rev 07/17/2019



_TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ# 0905-06-118 CFDANo. 20.205

_District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

_Code Chart 64# 25650

LProject_Name — 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

28. Debarment Certifications
If federal funds are used, the parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any
party that is debarred or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in
Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension.”
By executing this Agreement, the Local Government certifies that it and its principals are not
currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in
Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549 and further certifies that it will not
do business with any party, to include principals, that is currently debarred, suspended, or
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under
Executive Order 12549. The parties to this Agreement shall require any party to a subcontract
or purchase order awarded under this Agreement to certify its eligibility to receive federal
funds and, when requested by the State, to furnish a copy of the certification.

If state funds are used, the parties are prohibited from making any award to any party that is
debarred under the Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Part 1, Chapter 20, Subchapter G,
Rule §20.585 and the Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 9, Subchapter G.

29. Lobbying Certification
If federal funds are used, in executing this Agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of
that signatory’s knowledge and belief, that:
A. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the

parties to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with federal contracts, grants, loans, or cooperative
agreements, the signatory for the Local Government shall complete and submit the
Federal Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with
its instructions.

C. The parties shall require that the language of this certification shall be included in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Title 31 U.S.C. §1352. Any person
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

30. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements
If federal funds are used, the following requirements apply:

AFA LongGen
Page 14 of 16

Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 18

District # 05 Lubbock

Code Chart 64# 25650

CFDA No. 20.205

CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Project Name 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

A. Any recipient of funds under this Agreement agrees to comply with the Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and implementing regulations
at 2 CFR Part 170, including Appendix A. This Agreement is subject to the following
award terms: http://www.q po.qov/fdsyslpkglFR-20 10-09-1 4IpdfI2O 10-22705. pdf and
http:I/www.qpo.gov/fdsyslpkglFR-20 10-09-1 4/pdf/20 10-22706. pdf.

B. The Local Government agrees that it shall:
1. Obtain and provide to the State a System for Award Management (SAM) number

(Federal Acquisition Regulation, Part 4, Sub-part 4.11) if this award provides mote
than $25,000 in federal funding. The SAM number may be obtained by visiting the
SAM website whose address is: https://www.sam .qov/portal/public/SAM/

2. Obtain and provide to the State a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS)
number, a unique nine-character number that allows federal government to track
the distribution of federal money. The DUNS may be requested free of charge for
all businesses and entities required to do so by visiting the Dun & Bradstreet (D&B)
on-line registration website http://fedciov.dnb.com/webform; and

3. Report the total compensation and names of its top five executives to the State if:
i. Mote than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the federal government, and

those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and
ii. The compensation information is not already available through reporting to the

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

31. Single Audit Report
If federal funds are used:
A. The parties shall comply with the single audit report requirements stipulated in 2 CER

200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards.

B. If threshold expenditures of $750,000 or more ate met during the fiscal year, the Local
Government must submit a Single Audit Report and Management Letter (if applicable)
to TxDOT’s Compliance Division, 125 East 11th Street, Austin, TX 78701 or contact
TxDOT’s Compliance Division by email at singleaudits(txdot.gov.

C. If expenditures are less than the threshold during the Local Government’s fiscal year,
the Local Government must submit a statement to TxDOT’s Compliance Division as
follows: “We did not meet the $_______ expenditure threshold and therefore, are not
required to have a single audit performed for FY

______

D. For each year the Project remains open for federal funding expenditures, the Local
Government will be responsible for filing a report or statement as described above.
The required annual filing shall extend throughout the life of the Agreement, unless
otherwise amended or the Project has been formally closed out and no charges have
been incurred within the current fiscal year.

32. Signatory Warranty
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this Agreement
on behalf of the entity represented.

Page 15 of 16
AFA LongGen Rev 07/17/2019



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

: District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name J 14th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

Each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated under that party’s signature.

THE

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor

September 22, 2020

Date

Afl4JUf\(

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

September 22, 2020
Date

Itew%TE
Director of Cont act Services
Texas Department of Transportation

Date
tf/2o/z a

APPROVED AS TO CO1NTENT:

Michael G. Keenum, P.E., City Engineer

I
Date

APPR,OVED AS T,D FORM:

MWAi%iKell eisure, s istant City Attorney

qzfr9

Date

AFA LongGen
Page 16 of 16

Rev 07/17/201 9



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-118 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

_Project_Name 7 j4th Street- Quaker to Indiana —- AFA Not Used For Research & Development

ATTACHMENT A
RESOLUTION, ORDINACE, OR COMMISSIONERS COURT ORDER

Page 1 of 1
AFA LongGen Attachment A



Resolution No. 2020-R03 17

Item No. 7.4

September 22, 2020

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, an Advance Funding Agreement, Contract No. 15496, by
and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas acting through the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT) for the widening of 114th Street. from Quaker Avenue to Indiana
Avenue. Said Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if t’ulIy set
forth herein and shall be included in the minutes oithe City Council.

Passed by the City Council on. September 22 2020

DANIELM. POPE. MAYOR

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

SMwLc
iKelli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney

:cdocsfRES.AFA I 14th Quaker & tndana
)9.04.20



_TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

_CSJ # 0905-06-1 18 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

[ Project Name I 14th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

ATTACHMENT B
LOCATION MAP SHOWING PROJECT

AFA LongGen
Page 1 of 1

Attachment B



HxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

_CSJ # 0905-06-11 8 CFDA No. 20.205

District # 05 Lubbock CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

_Code Chart 64 # 25650

[ject_Name 114th Street- Quaker to Indiana AFA Not Used For Research & Development

ATTACHMENT C
PROJECT BUDGET

Except for Indirect State Costs, all other Costs will be allocated based on 80% Federal
funding and 20% Local Government funding until the federal funding reaches the maximum
obligated amount. The Local Government will then be responsible for 100% of the costs.

. . . . State
. . Total Estimated Federal Participation . . . Local ParticipationDescription

Cost Participation
% Cost % Cost % Cost

Construction
$9,700,000 80.00% $7,760,000 0.00% $0 20.00% $1 ,940,000

Subtotal $9,700,000.00 80.00% $7,760,000.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $1,940,000.00
Environmental
Direct State $87,300.00 80.00% $69,840.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $17,460.00
Costs
Right of Way
Direct State $43,700.00 80.00% $34,960.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $8,740.00
Costs
Engineering
Direct State $388,000.00 80.00% $310,400.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $77,600.00
Costs

$43,700.00 80.00% $34,960.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $8,740.00

Construction
Direct State $1,121,400.00 80.00% $897,120.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $224,280.00
Costs
Indirect State

$76,200.00 0.00% $0.00 0.00% $0 100.00% $76,200.00

Subtotal $1,760,300.00 80.00% $1,347,280.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $413,020.00
TOTAL $11,460,300.00 80.0Oj $9,107,280.00 0.00% $0 20.00% $2,353,020.00

Initial payment by the Local Government to the State: $188,740
Payment by the Local Government to the State before construction: $2,164,280

Estimated total payment by the Local Government to the State: $2,353,020
This is an estimate. The total amount of Local Government participation will be based

on actual costs.

AFA LongGen
Page 1 of 1

Attachment C



M
E
M
P
H
IS

IN
D
IA
N
A

LO
U
IS
V
IL
LE

JO
LI
E
T

Q
U
A
K
E
R

119TH

109TH

M
IA
M
I112TH

N
O
R
F
O
LK

122ND

110TH

N
O
R
F
O
LK

122ND

109TH

N
O
R
W
O
O
D

121ST

109TH

110TH

122ND

LY
N
N
H
A
V
E
N

N
O
R
F
O
LK

N
O
R
FO

LK

N
O
R
F
O
LK

111TH

K
E
N
O
S
H
A

109TH

110TH

109TH

108TH

SAVANNAH

108TH

113TH

O
X
F
O
R
D

110TH

111TH

110TH

108TH

O
R
LA

N
D
O

110TH

118TH

107TH

109TH

M
IA
M
I 109TH

117TH

118TH

111TH

LO
U
IS
V
IL
LE

K
N
O
X
V
IL
LE

K
E
N
O
S
H
A

120TH

122ND

121ST

Lakeview
Heights

Crest at
Cooper

Stonegate
Office Park

Above and
Beyond

Orchard Park
Professional
Business Park

Suncrest

The
Grove

Academy South

Turning
Point

Southern
Pine Valley
Golf Course

Orchard
Park

Second Cooper
Middle School

Lubbock
Walmart
6898

Cooper Plaza

O'Reilly

Vintage
Township

Tivoli
Estates

Hatton Place

Eagle Gen

114TH

¯

0 750 1,500375
Feet

114th Street
Indiana to Quaker

As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051,
SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of

the Government Code, the City of Lubbock hereby
provides notice that the data on this map was created

by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to
represent property boundaries is for informational

purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It

does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of

property boundaries.



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended 92737 92670

-$                             894,150                      

12,734                        

188,740                      

48,172                        

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

126,400                   -                                 

Encumbered/Expended To Date 126,400                   1,143,796                   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Construction 2,873,600                7,204                          

Remaining Appropriation 2,873,600                7,204                          

Total Appropriation 3,000,000$              1,151,000                   

Advanced Funding Agreement with TxDOT for water line 

114th Street Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue Design

November 16, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92670

PSA - Freese and Nichols, Inc. for Design - Contract 15317

Staff Time

Amendment 1 for for Design Contract 15317 with FNI

Contract 15496 AFA with TxDOT

92737

114th Street Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue

Budget



FY 2020-21 Operating Budget and Capital Program 454







 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16180, with
HDR Engineering, Inc., for design services associated with the Erskine Street Improvements Project.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of its citizens. It is necessary to
continue to anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing populous, in order to provide a safe and
effective transportation system.  Erskine Street, from North Frankford Avenue to the West City Limit
needs to be widened to accommodate an increase in traffic due to continued growth of the
Frenship Independent School District, as well as directly serving the North Police Substation.  
 
This roadway is designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a modified principal
arterial, which is a 5-lane multi-modal roadway cross-section. 
 
HDR Engineering, Inc. was prequalified to perform arterial roadway design services for the City of
Lubbock through RFQ 15876.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is not to exceed $1,544,635 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92713, Erskine
Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Service Contract 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail - 92713 







































































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Erskine Street - CIP 92713

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

SHADOW HILLS

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

25TH ST CIP 92713

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

CITY LIMITS

ERSKINE ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

ERSKINE ST

UPTOWN W
EST

SHADOW

HILLS

ESTATES

SPANISH

BIT

COURT

HORIZON

WEST

WILSHIR
E

ESTATES

WESTERN

ESTATES

4TH ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff time 928$                         

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

Contract 16180 with HDR Engineering, Inc. 1,544,635                 

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,545,563                 

Estimated cost for Remainiaing Approcation

Erskine Street Construction 9,754,437                 

Remainiaing Approcation -                                

Total Appropriation 11,300,000$             

City of Lubbock

92713

Erskine Street

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

November 16, 2021



FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program 280



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15923, with
Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., for construction services for the Upland Avenue Water Line Relocation.

Item Summary
The proposed project will relocate roughly 1,100 linear feet of a 16-inch potable water line along Upland
Avenue, between Marsha Sharp Freeway and 78th Street, ahead of the Upland Avenue Roadway
Expansion Project.

On September 26, 2021, the City of Lubbock released an Invitation to Bid (ITB), seeking qualified
contractors to perform construction services for the Upland Avenue Water Line Relocation Capital
Improvements Project. In response to ITB-21-15923-TF, three bids were received on October 14, 2021,
and were as follows:
  

Contractor Price
Rink's Lease Services, Inc., Levelland, Texas $349,929.00
TIMCO Blasting and Coating, Inc., Bristow, Oklahoma $350,379.96
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $430,000.00

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the contract to the low bidder, Rink’s Lease
Service, Inc., of Levelland, Texas, in the amount of $349,929.00. The time for substantial completion is
60 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed, for the contractor to perform construction services.

Fiscal Impact
This contract in the amount of $349,929.00, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92454, Water
Lines Ahead of Street Paving.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 















62

74th St

76th St

V
e
n
it
a
A
v
e

V
e
n
it
a
A
v
e

W
a
u
s
a
u
A
v
e

73rd St

King Nursery

Brads Self
Storage

South Plains
Pool Supply

Tommy Klein
Construction

Benchmark
Motorcars

Hartline Hvac

Gin

Auto Repair

78th St

Pool House

62
68th St

R
o
c
h
e
s
te
r
A
v
e

72nd St

76th St

Q
u
in
c
y
A
v
e

P
re
n
ti
s
s
A
v
e

77th St

Auto Repair
Pool House

Riding Stables

Main Shop

Pergola

Storge

King Nursery

Q
u
in
c
y
A
v
e

78th St

U
PL

AN
D

 A
V

PR
EN

TI
SS

 A
V

MARSH
A SH

ARP F
W

78TH ST

W
AU

SA
U

 A
V

Q
U

IN
CY

 A
V

76TH ST

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

U
R
BA

N
A 

AV

VE
N

IT
A 

AV

72ND ST

77TH ST

74TH ST

SA
R
AT

O
G

A 
AV

R
O

CH
ES

TE
R
 A

V

As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the
Government Code, the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was created
by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to represent property boundaries is for informational
purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate

relative location of property boundaries.

¯

Water Mains

Project Focus

Streets

Upland Water Relocation

0 200 400 600 800 1,000
Feet



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended 92454

168,908$                 

361                          

Professional Services 12,737                     

1,115,978                

476,297                   

321,000                   

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

349,929                   

Encumbered/Expended To Date 2,445,210                

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

AFA and Construction 1,921,128                

Remaining Appropriation 1,921,128                

Total Appropriation 4,366,338$              

Upland Water Line Relocate

November 16, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Staff Time

Advertisement

Pressure Zone Delineation and Elevated Storage Tank Off-Site Water 

Lines

Water Line Changeout Phase 4 - Contract 14669

92454

Water Lines Ahead of Street Paving

Water System Improvements



Project Name Water Lines Ahead of Street Pavings Project Number 92454

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

Relocate and install water lines ahead of municipal, county, and state paving projects and future development including but not limited 

to the Gateway Paving Projects.

FY 21-22 - Replace and relocate waterlines ahead of unimproved roadway projects.

Project Justification

The project is an annual water line installation program coordinated with street paving projects.

Project History

FY 17-18 - Kent Street 12 inch Water Line to Loop-In Hillcrest subdivision and FM 179 Water Line Re-route ahead of TxDOT paving 

project.

FY 18-19 - Replaced and relocated waterlines ahead of unimproved roadways project.

FY 19-20 - Installed waterline ahead of the Burl Huffman roadway improvements. 

FY 20-21 Installed waterline ahead of Upland Ave. 

$250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2016-17 Budget, Ord. No. 2016-O0135, October 1, 2016.

$1,216,338 was appropriated in FY 2016-17 Budget Amendment No. 36, Ord. No. 2017-O0103, September 14, 2017.

$250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017. 

$150,000 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget Change Request No. 1819-11, June 18, 2019.

$750,000 was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$1,750,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  4,291,338  0  0  0  0  0  0  4,291,338 

Design and Engineering  75,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  75,000 

Total Project Appropriation  4,366,338  0  0  0  0  0  0  4,366,338 



Project Name Water Lines Ahead of Street Pavings Project Number 92454

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2016 Water Revenue CO's  1,216,338  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,216,338 

FY 2017 Water Cash  250,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  250,000 

FY 2018 Water/Wastewater Cash  400,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  400,000 

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater Cash  750,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  750,000 

FY 2021 Water/Wastewater Cash  1,750,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,750,000 

Total Funding Sources  4,366,338  0  0  0  0  0  0  4,366,338 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

 

Project Summary 

 

ITB 21-15923-TF 

Upland Waterline Relocation 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 26 & October 3, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 26 to October 14, 2021. 

4 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

35 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

35 vendors downloaded the documents. 

9 vendors was notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing an East-Side Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Lee's PDR, LLC, pursuant to Article
IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development
Alliance. 

Item Summary
In November of 2018, the Lubbock City Council authorized the establishment of the Lubbock East
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone for the purpose of encouraging redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zone. Through
the establishment of the Lubbock East Neighborhood Empowerment Zone, Market Lubbock, Inc. had a
geographic boundary within which it would implement its East Side Grant Program. 

Lee's PDR, LLC is making improvements to the exterior of their property at 420 E. Broadway, located
within the East Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
project will include xeriscaping the East Broadway frontage, paving, and adding a gate. The cost of the
project is estimated to be $12,158 and the requested grant amount is $6,079. The Market Lubbock, Inc.
Board of Directors approved this amount at their October 27, 2021 regular board meeting, and
recommend approval by the Lubbock City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $12,158, with $6,079 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 



























 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a program or expenditure of the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, to be provided to BASF Corporation, Inc., pursuant to
Section 501.073 of the Texas Local Government Code.

Item Summary
BASF Corporation is a foreign, for-profit corporation currently conducting business in the City of
Lubbock. They are planning to expand and remodel their existing facility, and to relocate and
consolidate assets in California, Arizona, and Texas to their location at 1405 East Loop 289, Lubbock,
Texas. This expansion is anticipated to result in the creation of 23 primary jobs, with a target annual
compensation of $1,380,000, or a total of $6,900,000 over five years. The total capital investment is
estimated to be $1,250,000. 

The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors voted to incentivize BASF
Corporation with the following:  

$161,000 in reimbursement for the cost of the irrigation equipment on approximately 54.8 acres of
land 
$330,000 in reimbursement for the cost of moving BASF's current field trial operations onto the
Carlton Property
54.8 acres of land, also known as the Eppes Property, which has an estimated value of $6,875 per
acre, or $376,750
Conveyance of the Carlton Property, which has an estimated value of $5,472 per acre, or $511,632 

The LEDA Board of Directors approved these incentives at their October 27, 2021 Regular Board
Meeting, and recommend approval by the Lubbock City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) Board of Directors voted to incentivize BASF
Corporation with a total capital investment of $1,250,000 as described in the Item Summary.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Performance Agreement 



























 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
25300004, with Oshkosh Airport Products, LLC, for the Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Vehicle at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
The Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) vehicle will replace an existing vehicle that is reaching
its maximum useful service life. Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport is certificated under Part
139 and requires this vehicle and equipment to maintain the ARFF index and continue to meet the
response requirements of Part 139.

In response to ITB 21-16075-MA, one bid was received from the following company:
  

Company Amount
Oshkosh Airport Products, LLC, Neenah, Wisconsin $873,721

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend the contract award to Oshkosh Airport
Products, LLC of Neenah, Wisconsin, for the Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Vehicle at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. Estimated time of arrival is 365 days.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 2530004 for $873,721, will be funded from Capital Improvement Project 92717.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Oshkosh 
PO 25300004 - Oshkosh 
Waiver for ARFF Vehicle 
Project Summary- ARFF Vehicle 
Budget Detail 









  
FAA  
Office of Airports Planning and Programming   
   
October 4, 2021 
  
Mr. Dustin Raddatz 
Oshkosh Airport Products 
1515 County Road O 
Neenah, Wisconsin  54956 
DRaddatz@airport.oshkoshcorp.com 
  
Ms. Kelly Campbell 
Executive Director of Aviation 
City of Lubbock 
5401 North Martin Luther King Boulevard, Unit 389 
Lubbock, Texas 79403 
KCampbell@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us 
   
RE:  Request for FAA Project Specific Buy American Preference Waiver for Stryker 4x4 ARFF Vehicle for use on 

Airport Improvement Program Grant Award 3-48-0138-045-2020 
 
Dear Mr. Raddatz:   
 
Thank you for your interest in the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Buy American Preference.   
 
The FAA has completed its review and analysis of the Product Content Percentage worksheet and Product Final Assembly 
Questionnaire in consideration of your request for a Type III Buy American waiver for the Stryker 4x4 ARFF Vehicle 
under 49 U.S.C. §50101(b)(3) for use on AIP award 3-48-0220-046-2020 for Lubbock Preston Smith International 
Airport, Lubbock, Texas. 
 
Based on the documents you submitted, it appears that the cost of components and subcomponents produced in the 
United States (U.S.) is more than 60% of the cost of all the product’s components and final assembly occurs in the U.S.   
 
The FAA approves a project specific Type III waiver for Stryker 4x4 ARFF Vehicle. Be advised that this waiver is limited 
to this specific product for this AIP airport project.   
 
This approved waiver is scheduled for a publication on the FAA Buy American webpage, where it shall be open ten days 
for public comment, and then added to the list of Project Specific Buy American Waivers.    
 
Please contact me should you have any additional questions.   
 
Sincerely,  
  
 
Ben Guttery 
Management & Program Analyst 
  
Cc: File  
 



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
ITB 21-16075-MA Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 

 (ARFF) Truck Replacement 
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Ava Journal August 29, 2021 and September 5, 2021 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities 
Notice was published on Bonfirehub.com from April 27, 2021 through September 6, 2021  
Notice was published on BidSync.com from April 27, 2021 through September 16, 2021  
36 viewed using Bonfirehub.com 
34 viewed using BidSync.com  
 10 Vendors downloaded the documents. 
  7  Vendors were notified separately.  
  1 Vendor submitted a bid. 

 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

-$                           

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

ARFF Vehicle Purchase - Oshkosh Airport Products 873,721                 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 873,721                 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Contingency 1,279                     

  Remaining Appropriation 1,279                     

Total Appropriation 875,000$               

92717

Replace ARFF Vehicle

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

November 16, 2021



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16053, with
The Wilson Group, Inc., for glass replacement at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
The airport terminal building is in need of glass replacement. The intent of this project is to replace the
terminal building window glass panes that have been identified as being broken, fogged, or mismatched
with new panes of glass that will match the existing panes. Approximately 201 glass panes will be
replaced out of 2,051 total glass panes.

In response to ITB 21-16053-TF, bids were received on October 14, 2021, from the following
companies: 
  

Company Amount
The Wilson Group, Inc., Kansas City, Missouri $447,663
Johnson General Contractors Group LLC, Lubbock, Texas $635,017

The contract is awarded by the unit price. The total amount of the award is based on expected quantities
and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities installed. The price per unit
will not change.

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend contract award to The Wilson Group, Inc., of
Kansas City, Missouri, for $447,663, for the Airport Glass Replacement at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport. Completion time for the project is 205 consecutive calendar days.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $447,663 for Airport Glass Replacement, will be funded from Capital Improvement
Project 92361.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - The Wilson Group 
Contract 16053 The Wilson Group 
Budget Detail 



CIP Detail 
Project Summary 











Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

RS&H Amendment #7 (original design development) 1,496,751$            

RS&H Amendment #8 (additional scope) 439,992                 

Hensel Phelps (preconstruction fee) 172,387                 

Kutchins & Groh (independent fee analysis) 4,525                     

Kutchins & Groh (independent fee analysis) 5,131                     

Procurement Expense 204                        

RS&H Amendment #11 (construction admin-GMP#1) 215,371                 

Hensel Phelps Amendment #1 (GMP#1) 4,221,550              

Hensel Phelps Amendment #2 (GMP#2) 32,467,367            

RS&H Amendment #12 (construction admin GMP#2) 2,997,888              

Kutchins & Groh (independent fee analysis) 4,400                     

Par Kut International (deposit) 4,498                     

Arconas Corporation (gate counter podium w/ glass) 14,569                   

Par Kut International (6ft x 12ft building with canopy) 17,992                   

Procurement Expense 860                        

Procurement Expense 230                        

RS&H Amendment #6 (additional scope) 119,580                 

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

The Wilson Group (glass replacement) 447,663                 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 42,630,958            

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Contingency 3,092,559              

  Remaining Appropriation 3,092,559              

Total Appropriation 45,723,517$          

92361

Terminal  Building Improvements

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

November 16, 2021





Project Name Terminal Building Remodel Project Number 92361

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Aviation Maintenance

Kelly Campbell

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

The remodel includes modifications to the screening and exit points, consolidation of the baggage claims areas, HVAC/mechanical, 

electrical, IT, and plumbing improvements, roof replacement, PA system replacement, and aesthetic improvements to the exterior and 

interior areas.

Project Start Date - Construction: December 2019

Project End Date - Construction: August 2021

Project Justification

The airport terminal building opened in 1976.  Many key components are failing and it is necessary to rehabilitate and/or replace to 

maintain operations. The airport master plan contains a long-term list of rehabilitation and improvement projects necessary to maintain 

airport facilities and meet the requirements of the FAA.  The various elements of this project will address security and also operational 

needs in the airport terminal building.

Project History

Due to the complexity of the project, the construction estimate has increased. A budget amendment will be presented in FY 2018-19 to 

reflect available funding.

A construction contract for Phase 1-roof replacement was awarded to Hensel Phelps in April 2019 for $4,221,552.  Phase II including 

the remaining components of the project was awarded to Hensel Phelps in September 2019 for $32,467,367.

CIP 92437 was combined with CIP 92361 in the FY 2018-19 Budget.

$34,689,163 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018

$11,034,354 was appropriated in Budget Amendment No. 27, Ord. No. 2019-O0133, September 24, 2019.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  43,451,598  0  0  0  0  0  0  43,451,598 

Design and Engineering  1,501,882  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,501,882 

Total Project Appropriation  44,953,480  0  0  0  0  0  0  44,953,480 



Project Name Terminal Building Remodel Project Number 92361

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Airport Capital Project Fund  1,177,761  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,177,761 

Federal Grant Funding  18,088,646  0  0  0  0  0  0  18,088,646 

FY 2014 Airport Revenue CO's  204,489  0  0  0  0  0  0  204,489 

FY 2015 Airport Revenue CO's  2,342,250  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,342,250 

FY 2015 PFC Revenue CO's  381,729  0  0  0  0  0  0  381,729 

FY 2016 PFC Revenue CO's  283,605  0  0  0  0  0  0  283,605 

FY 2019 Airport Revenue CO's  7,135,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,135,000 

FY 2019 PFC Revenue CO's  15,340,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  15,340,000 

Total Funding Sources  44,953,480  0  0  0  0  0  0  44,953,480 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 100,000 Facilities Maintenance and Custodial  60,000  0  0  0  0  160,000 

Total Operating Budget Impact  100,000  60,000  0  0  0  0  160,000 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

 

Project Summary 

 

ITB 21-16053-TF 

Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport Glass Replacement 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 19 & September 26, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 19 to October 14, 2021. 

5 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

27 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

27 vendors downloaded the documents. 

16 vendors was notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 3 to Contract 12643, with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (Esri), in the
amount of $1,235,000, for Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software and services.

Item Summary
In December 2012, the City of Lubbock contracted with Environmental Services Research Institute
(Esri) for Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software and services.  Esri is the industry standard
mapping software that provides spatial information for a variety of third party software systems used by
the City, including Cartegraph Asset Management and EnerGov Permit and Licensing systems.  The
City renewed this contract in 2015 and 2018.

Amendment 3 continues the City’s successful relationship with Esri, by extending the term of the
agreement for an additional 3 years, from December 17, 2021, through December 16, 2024.  It is an
Enterprise License Agreement (ELA), which is a bundled package for licensing software, technical
services, web services, and maintenance.  This gives City departments unlimited access to a variety of
Esri software, plus technical services and training.  This contract provides software and services for all
City departments, including Public Safety, Engineering, Planning, Public Works, Parks, and Lubbock
Power and Light.

Esri is the owner and manufacturer of their GIS software, and is the sole source of all U.S. domestic
ELA’s.  Therefore, this is a sole source procurement, exempt from competitive bidding, pursuant to
Texas Local Government Code Chapter 252.022 (a)(7)(A).

Fiscal Impact
The first year cost of this ELA is $400,000, with a total 3-year contract value of $1,235,000, which is
funded from the Information Technology Operating Budget. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Director of Information Technology

Attachments
Resolution - Amendment 3 to Contract 12643 
Amendment No. 3 to Esri Contract 12643 

















 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolutions - Fleet Services: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16246 with Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co., and Contract 16166 with B-King Ventures, LLC
dba Clear-Vu Auto Glass, for windshield and window replacement services for City of Lubbock
vehicles and equipment.

Item Summary
In response to ITB 22-16166-KM, which included 22 classes of windshields and windows, the following
vendors submitted bids, per the attached Bid Tabulation Sheet.
  

Vendor Location
Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, Texas
B King Ventures, LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, Texas
Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, Texas
GPNA Lubbock, Inc dba Glass Doctor Lubbock, Texas

This contract is for the annual pricing for vehicle windshield and window replacement services for City
vehicles and equipment. Hourly rates quoted in this bid included ALL services such as glass, parts,
materials and labor needed to perform the work.

Staff recommends awards to the 2 lowest bidders, Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. of
Lubbock, Texas, and B King Ventures, LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass of Lubbock, Texas, in order to
have replacement services available at all times. The contract term is for 1 year with the option to renew
for two additional 1-year terms.

Fiscal Impact
Estimated annual expense for this contract is $50,000 and is budgeted in the Adopted FY 2021-22
Operating Budget for Fleet Operations.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic R. Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution - 16246 (Phares) Auto Glass Co. 
Contract - 16246 (Phares) Auto Glass Co. 
Resolution - 16166 (B King) Clear Vu Auto Glass 



Contract - 16166 (B King) Clear Vu Auto Glass 
Bid Tab - Vehicle Glass Replacement 
Project Summary - Vehicle Glass Replacement 



















































































































City of Lubbock 

Fleet Services

Bid Tabulation

Vendor/Description Location

Per Hourly 

Rate 

#0-1 CLASS 1 - 6,000 lbs. & less

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX  $       25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX           98.00 

#0-2 -CLASS 2 - 6,001 - 10,000 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX           98.00 

#0-3 - CLASS 3 - 10,001 - 14,000 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX           98.00 

#0-4 - CLASS 4 - 14,001 - 16,000 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX         120.00 

#0-5 - CLASS 5 - 16,001 - 19,500 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX         120.00 

#0-6 - CLASS 6 – 9 – 19,501 lbs. and over

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX         125.00 

ITB 22-16166-KM Vehicle Windshield and Window Services 



City of Lubbock 

Fleet Services

Bid Tabulation

Vendor/Description Location

Per Hourly 

Rate 

#0-7 - Additional charge - Tempered Glass

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           15.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

#0-8 - Additional charge - Tinted Glass

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

#0-9 - Additional charge – Travel outside limits (Per 

Mile)

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX 0.00

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX             2.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-10 - CLASS 1 - 6,000 lbs. & less

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-11 - CLASS 2 - 6,001 - 10,000 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-12 - CLASS 3 - 10,001 - 14,000 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 



City of Lubbock 

Fleet Services

Bid Tabulation

Vendor/Description Location

Per Hourly 

Rate 

#0-13 - CLASS 4 - 14,001 - 16,000 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-14 - CLASS 5 - 16,001 - 19,500 lbs.

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-15 - CLASS 6 – 9 – 19,501 lbs. and over

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           25.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           29.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           32.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-16 - Additional charge - Tempered Glass

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX 0.00

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           15.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-17 - Additional charge - Tinted Glass

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX 0.00

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX No Bid 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX No Bid 

#0-18 - Additional charge – Travel outside limits (Per 

Mile)

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX             1.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX 0.00

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX             2.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX  No Bid 



City of Lubbock 

Fleet Services

Bid Tabulation

Vendor/Description Location

Per Hourly 

Rate 

#0-19 - CLASS 1- 9 (all vehicles) - Front & Back Windshield

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           19.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           25.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX           50.00 

#0-20 - CLASS 1- 9 (all vehicles) - Side Windows

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           29.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX  No Bid 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX           50.00 

#0-21 - CLASS 1- 9 (all vehicles) - Front & Back Windshield

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           29.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           35.00 

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

#0-22 - CLASS 1- 9 (all vehicles) - Side Windows

Phares Auto Glass, Inc. dba Auto Glass Co. Lubbock, TX           29.00 

B King Ventures LLC dba Clear Vu Auto Glass Lubbock, TX           20.00 

Johnson Auto Glass Lubbock, TX  No Bid  

GPNA Lubbock, Inc. dba Glass Doctor of Lubbock Lubbock, TX  No Bid  



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

ITB 22-16166-KM Vehicle Windshield and Window Services  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on October 6 and October 13, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from October 5, 2021 to October 26, 2021. 

14 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

20 vendors were notified separately.  

4 vendors submitted a bids. 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31062734, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 052417, with Romco Equipment Company, for the
purchase of an M30 Concrete Truck, for the Water Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31062734 for $208,152.56, is for the purchase of an M30 Concrete Truck. The vehicle
will be purchased from Romco Equipment Company, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 052417,
and will be used in the Water Department. The concrete truck is replacing an International 4400
Concrete Truck that is past its useful life. This cement truck will allow the City to produce its own
cement materials instead of contracting out this service.

Sourcewell has a cooperative purchasing program that manages the solicitation requirements and offers
an established network of awarded contracts that have been competitively bid. Cooperative purchasing is
authorized in Chapter 271 of the Local Government Code and allows a local government to participate in
a cooperative purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases conform to the requirements of Texas
competitive bid statues.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31062734 for $208,152.56, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92724,
Water/Waste Water Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic R. Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution - Romco Equipment 
PO 31062734 - Romco Equipment 
CIP 92724 Budget Detail 
CIP 92724 Detail 













Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

-$                                                

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

208,153                                       

Encumbered/Expended To Date 208,153                                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 530,847                                       

Remaining Appropriation 530,847                                       

Total Appropriation 739,000$                                     

Concrete Truck (6331)

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

November 16, 2021

92724

Water / Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the Water/Wastewater Fund.

6311 Water Meter and Customer Service

(3) 3/4 Ton, Extended Cab, 4x4, Service Body (replacing 22009014, 22008134, and 22013015) - $114,000

6331 Water Distribution & Maintenance

(1) Concrete Truck (replacing 82011007) - $185,000

(2) Backhoe (replacing 92009249 and 92009182) - $240,000

(1) Crew Truck W/ Flatbed (replacing 72010005) - $110,000

6349 Water Reservoir

(1) Land Pride RC2684 3 Point Shredder

(replacing 02012010) - $5,000

6413 Wastewater Collection

(1) 8" trailer mounted pump (replacing 02000178) - $50,000

6417 Industrial Monitoring

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with crane (replacing 22006237) - $35,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$739,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31062840, with Deere & Company, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 031121-DAC, for the
purchase of a John Deere 9009A TerrainCut Rough Mower, for the Park Maintenance Department.  

Item Summary
Purchase Order31062840 for $73,404.44, is for the purchase of a John Deere 9009A TerrainCut Rough
Mower. The vehicle will be purchased from Deere & Company and will be used in the Park Maintenance
Department. The mower is replacing a Bat Wing 2615 Legand Mower that is past its useful life.  

This purchase is made through Sourcewell Contract 031121-DAC.  Sourcewell has a cooperative
purchasing program that manages the solicitation requirements and offers an established network of
awarded contracts that have been competitively bid.  Cooperative purchasing is authorized in Chapter
271 of the Local Government Code and allows a local government to participate in a cooperative
purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases conform to the requirements of Texas competitive bid
statutes.  

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31062840 for $73,404.44, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92720 General
Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic R. Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution - Deer and Company 
PO 31062840 - Deere and Company 
Budget Detail - CIP 92720 
CIP Detail - 92720 





1Page    -
Date    - 11/4/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31062840 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

DEERE & COMPANY CITY OF LUBBOCK
2000 JOHN DEERE RUN FLEET SERVICES

206 MUNICIPAL DRIVECARY NC 27513
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight11/3/2021
Taken ByRequested 5/17/2022 S BALLANCE

CONTRACT 031121-DAC/ PUR 16258Delivery PER N DODSON, REQ 58061

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
9009A TerrainCut Rough Mower 70,854.0400 EA 70,854.04 5/17/2022
Canopy Kit 496.2800 EA 496.28 5/17/2022
Air Ride Suspension Kit 674.1200 EA 674.12 5/17/2022
Delivery 1,380.0000 EA 1,380.00 5/17/2022

Total Order

NET 30 DAYSTerms 73,404.44

If you have any questions, contact Natalie Dodson: NDodson@mylubbock.us or 806-775-2374

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $73,404.44 awarded to Austin Turf & Tractor of Marble Falls, TX, 

on _________________, 2021. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated 

October 29, 2021, from Austin Truck & Tractor of Marble Falls, TX, and Sourcewell Contract 031121-DAC.  

 Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK ATTEST: 

___________________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 



REV. 9/2021     

    Rev. 9/2021 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER         
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

IMPORTANT: READ CAREFULLY  
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TX 
1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.
Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address,
(b) Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number 
if applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number 
of the container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods 
shall be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common 
carriers and any applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments 
not accompanied by packing lists. 
2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under
reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 
3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer
actually receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 
4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply 
with all provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does 
not fully conform, this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming 
tender, provided, where the time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer 
of his intention to cure and may then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase 
order or purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release 
number and the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, 
if any, shall be listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should 
be attached to the invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 
79457.  Payment shall not be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to
Seller if it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered
or given by the Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of
Lubbock with a view to securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or
amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event
this contract is canceled by Buyer pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other 
rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities.

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any 
special tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, 
such special tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer 
and to the extent feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid 
which Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind 
and specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods 
of purchase.  In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the 
Seller’s  current  prices  on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without 
liability to Seller for breach or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency 
has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for 
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established 
commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for the purpose of securing business.  For breach of 
viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to any other right of rights to cancel this 
contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover without liability and to 
deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage 
or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do 
so shall render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will 
conform to the specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished 
by the Seller, if any. In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the 
specifications shall govern. Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller 
represents and warrants fault-free performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data 
(including, but not limited to calculating, comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware 
products delivered and services provided under this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may 
be from the effective date of this Contract. The obligations contained herein apply to products and services 
provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party involved in the creation or development of the products 
and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the 
obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock availing itself of any of its rights under the 
law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining to termination or default. The 
warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties specified in this Contract, 
and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the Seller’s liability 
which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document incorporated 
in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards
promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the
event the product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or
replacement at the Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a
reasonable time, correction made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller 
agrees to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement 
will give rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no
warranty that the production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no 
event shall Buyer be liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of 
infringement of the like.  If Seller is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the 
Buyer to this effect in writing within two weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive 
notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If 
Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the goods in accordance with the specifications will result in 
infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 
12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the 
availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds 
by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will 
terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal
year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract 
is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 
contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give 
such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of 
termination. 
13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting 
them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered
portion of this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in 
lieu of any other remedies which Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the 
Buyer in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery 
of the Seller of a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the 
order is terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is 
in addition to and not in lieu of the rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment
of any terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the
party whose performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is
unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of
any obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or
delegation by Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with 
this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part 
by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by 
consideration and is in writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and 
performance  provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by 
Seller as part of his bid, is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also 
as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the 
Uniform Commercial Code is used in this agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Whereever
the term “Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial
Code as adopted in the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question 
the other party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to 
perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding 
party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 
employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs 
and expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract 
or which may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was 
caused through negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its 
employees, if any, and the Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys
and all costs and other expenses arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment 
shall be rendered against the Buyer in any such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and 
discharge the same Seller expressly understands and agrees that any bond required by this contract, or 
otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless 
and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of
this contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to
be in default of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into 
pursuant to this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to 
submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, 
sex or natural origin in consideration for an award. 
25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, 
equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 
its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 
and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision 
in, or related to, this document, this provision shall control. 
26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly 
authorized audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 
reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under 
this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, 
Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such 
audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any 
payments due Contractor. 
27.  ASSIGNING OR SUBLETTING THE CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, 
or any portion of the contract, without written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract 
Management.  Should consent be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on
insurance from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
29. HOUSE BILL 1295 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PARTIES.  House Bill 1295, adopted by the 84th 
Legislature, created §2252.908, Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering 
into certain contracts with a governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state 
agency a disclosure of interested parties at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the 
governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for completing Form 1295 are available at: 
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 
30. CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read,
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material
contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and
conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict
between these terms and conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and
conditions provided herein shall prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed
upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
31. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 2252. The undersigned representative of the undersigned 
company or business, being an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, pursuant to Texas Government 
Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152, certify that the company named above is not listed on the website of 
the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies that are identified under Section 
806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further certify that should the above-named company enter 
into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas, which
do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist Organization, I will immediately notify the City of 
Lubbock Purchasing and Contract Department.
32. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 2270 This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is 
between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of 
$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A 
governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott 
Israel during the term of the contract. 
33.  TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 
Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 
contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. To the 
extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) 
of the Texas Government Code; the City of Lubbock has designated the following email address for which 
public information requests may be made by an emailed request. Please send this request to this email address 
for it to be processed: orr@mylubbock.us.



If information is not included, the Purchase Order or Letter of Intent 
will be returned. 

 Vendor: Deere & Company    
 2000 John Deere Run   
 Cary, NC 27513

 Contract name and number

 Signature
 Shipping address 
 Billing address 

 Membership number (if applicable)

 Tax exempt certificate (if applicable). Must be made out to Deere & Company.

A Purchase Order or Letter of Intent is required for all orders. 

To expedite the delivery of equipment, the below information must be included 
on your Purchase Order or Letter of Intent.

Jessie Hunt

Austin Turf & Tractor
809 Steve Hawkins Pkwy
Marble Falls, TX 78654

Tel:  830-693-6477
Fax:  830-693-7791
Email: jessie.hunt@austinturf.com

For any questions, please contact:

The John Deere Government Sales Team



Date: 29 October 2021 Offer Expires: 29 November 2021

Confidential

Quote Id: 25535303

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Austin Turf & Tractor
809 Steve Hawkins Pkwy
Marble Falls, TX 78654
 830-693-6477
harry.jukes@austinturf.com

Prepared For:

CITY OF LUBBOCK PARKS AND RECREATION

Proposal For:

Delivering Dealer:
Jessie Hunt

Austin Turf & Tractor
809 Steve Hawkins Pkwy
Marble Falls, TX 78654

harry.jukes@austinturf.com

Quote Prepared By:
Jessie Hunt
jessie.hunt@austinturf.com



ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT  
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Austin Turf & Tractor
809 Steve Hawkins Pkwy
Marble Falls, TX 78654
 830-693-6477
harry.jukes@austinturf.com

Confidential

Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Quote Summary

Prepared For:
CITY OF LUBBOCK PARKS AND RECREATION
PO BOX 2000
LUBBOCK, TX 79457
Business:  806-767-2683

Delivering Dealer:
Austin Turf & Tractor

Jessie Hunt
809 Steve Hawkins Pkwy

Marble Falls, TX 78654
Phone:  830-693-6477

jessie.hunt@austinturf.com

 Quote ID: 25535303
29 October 2021
29 October 2021

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 29 November 2021

Equipment Summary Suggested List Selling Price Qty Extended

JOHN DEERE 9009A TerrainCut 
Rough Mower

$ 96,149.00 $ 73,404.44 X 1 = $ 73,404.44

Contract: Sourcewell Grounds Maintenance 031121-DAC (PG NB CG 70)
Price Effective Date: October 28, 2021

Equipment Total $ 73,404.44

* Includes Fees and Non-contract items Quote Summary

Equipment Total $ 73,404.44

Trade In 
SubTotal $ 73,404.44
Est. Service 
Agreement Tax

$ 0.00

Total $ 73,404.44
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 73,404.44



Quote Id: 25535303 Customer Name: CITY OF LUBBOCK PARKS AND RECREATION

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Austin Turf & Tractor
809 Steve Hawkins Pkwy
Marble Falls, TX 78654
 830-693-6477
harry.jukes@austinturf.com

JOHN DEERE 9009A TerrainCut Rough Mower
Hours:
Stock Number:
Contract: Sourcewell Grounds Maintenance 031121-DAC 

(PG NB CG 70)
Price Effective Date: October 28, 2021

Suggested List *
$ 96,149.00
Selling Price *
$ 73,404.44

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
1445TC 9009A TerrainCut Rough 

Mower
1 $ 93,229.00 24.00 $ 22,374.96 $ 70,854.04 $ 70,854.04

Standard Options - Per Unit
001A United States/Canada 1 $ 0.00 24.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
0443 All Other Countries 

(English / Spanish)
1 $ 0.00 24.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

9764 Canopy Kit 1 $ 653.00 24.00 $ 156.72 $ 496.28 $ 496.28
9792 Air Ride Suspension Kit 1 $ 887.00 24.00 $ 212.88 $ 674.12 $ 674.12

Standard Options Total $ 1,540.00 $ 369.60 $ 1,170.40 $ 1,170.40
Dealer Attachments/Non-Contract/Open Market

Delivery Delivery 1 $ 1,380.00 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 1,380.00 $ 1,380.00
Dealer Attachments Total $ 1,380.00 $ 0.00 $ 1,380.00 $ 1,380.00

Value Added Services 
Total

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Total Selling Price $ 96,149.00 $ 22,744.56 $ 73,404.44 $ 73,404.44



Scag Power Equipment

Grounds & Landscape Equipment for Lawn, Turf, & Debris

#031121-SCG 

Maturity Date: 04/30/2025

Products & Services

Sourcewell contract 031121-SCG gives access to the following types of goods and services:

Locate a Dealer

Commercial lawn equipment 

Walk-behind mowers 

Zero turn ride on mowers

Stand on mowers

Stand on STS spreader sprayer 

Stand on windstorm blower

Wheeled blowers 

Skid mounted truck loaders

Tow behind truck loaders 

Belt drive truck loaders 

Bagging & mulching systems 

SCAG turf & debris accessories 

























Contract DocumentsPricingContact InformationProducts & Services 

 

https://www.scag.com/dealer-locator/
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/


Become a Member

Simply complete the online application or contact the Client Development team at

service@sourcewell-mn.gov or 877-585-9706.

Search Vendors & Contracts

General Contracts

ezIQC Contracts

Sourcewell’s website may contain links to nongovernment websites being provided as a convenience and for
informational purposes only. Sourcewell neither endorses nor guarantees, in any way, the external organization’s services,
advice, or products included in these website links. Sourcewell bears no responsibility for the accuracy, legality, or
timeliness of any content on the external site or for that of subsequent links. All questions related to content on external
sites should be addressed directly to the host of that particular website.

      

Sourcewell for Vendors

Terms & Conditions Privacy Policy

Sitemap Accessibility

© 2021 Sourcewell. All rights reserved.

https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/become-member
mailto:service@sourcewell-mn.gov
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/cooperative-purchasing/contracts-vendor-search/
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/cooperative-purchasing-eziqc/search/
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/sourcewellgov/
https://twitter.com/sourcewell_gov
https://www.linkedin.com/company/sourcewell-gov/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCoVuYDfX1jjepnpwvRTL54A
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/sourcewell-for-vendors
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/privacy-policy
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/privacy-policy
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/sitemap
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/privacy-policy


Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

-$                                

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

(4) LP61-G Litter Vacuums (5221) 72,732                         

9009A TerrainCut Rough Mower (5221) 73,404                         

Encumbered/Expended To Date 146,136                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 2,756,842                    

Remaining Appropriation 2,756,842                    

Total Appropriation 2,902,978$                  

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

November 16, 2021

92720

General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92720

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the General Fund.

4211 - Codes Administration

(2) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 12010030 and 12010038) - $56,000

(1) 3/4 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 22001050) - $32,000

(1) 1/2 ton pickup, toolbox, lightbar, radios (NEW) - $29,978

4311 - Building Safety

(1) 1/2 ton pick-up (replacing 12010055) - $25,000

4525 - Traffic Operations

(1) 48" digging depth trencher (replacing 92001015) - $55,000

4531 - Paved Streets

(1) Steel Drum Roller with 51"-55" width (replacing 92009162) - $65,000

(1) Towable roller with rear vibration and split front drum (replacing 92010063) - $75,000

(1) Walk behind roller (replacing N/A) - $8,000

5221 - Park Maintenance

(1) John Deere 9009A Terrain Cut Mower (replacing 02004001) - $85,000

(3) Litter Vacuum LP61-G (replacing N/A) - $75,000

(1) Tandem 10k Utility Trailer (replacing 02001116) - $6,000

5311 - Animal Services 

(1) 3/4 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with animal transport body (replacing 22011119) - $52,000

5414 - Environmental Health

(1) Mid-size SUV (NEW) - $32,000

5419 - Vector Control

(2) 3/4 ton 4x4 with Flatbed (replacing 22003168 and 22004082) - $60,000

5615 - Lubbock Fire Rescue

(1) 50' Aerial (NEW) - $200,000

(2) 1/2 ton, crew cab, 4x4 pickup (replacing 12009169 and 12007135) - $64,000

5811 - Residential Collection

(1) Roll-Off (replacing 82010001) - $160,000

(1) 3/4 Ton, Crew Cab, 4x4 (replacing 12008154) - $33,000

(4) Automated Side Loader (replacing 82012019, 82014014, 82014032, and 82014029) - $1,280,000

5812 - Alley Maintenance 

(1) 12 yard dump with salt spreader hookups (replacing 82008181) - $200,000

(1) CAT 120 Motor Grader (replacing 82008204) - $265,000



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92720

5815 - Solid Waste Disposal

(1) 3/4 Ton, Crew Cab, 4x4, service body, Air Compressor (replacing 32013016) - $45,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$2,902,978 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Total Project Appropriation  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Total Funding Sources  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31062880, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 122017-EXP, with Madvac, Inc., for the purchase of
4 LP61-G Portable Litter Vacuums, for the Parks Maintenance Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31062880 for $72,732, is for the purchase of 4 LP61-G Portable Litter Vacuums. The
equipment will be purchased from Madvac, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract #122017-EXP.  The
Portable Litter Vacuums will be used to pickup windblown trash in City parks.

Sourcewell has a cooperative purchasing program that manages the solicitation requirements and
offers an established network of awarded contracts that have been competitively bid.  Cooperative
purchasing is authorized in Chapter 271 of the Local Government Code and allows a local government to
participate in a cooperative purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases conform to the requirements of
Texas competitive bid statutes.  

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31062880 for $72,732, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92720, General Fund
Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic R. Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 







REV. 9/2021     

    Rev. 9/2021 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER         
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

IMPORTANT: READ CAREFULLY  
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TX 
1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.
Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address,
(b) Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number 
if applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number 
of the container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods 
shall be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common 
carriers and any applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments 
not accompanied by packing lists. 
2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under
reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 
3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer
actually receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 
4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply 
with all provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does 
not fully conform, this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming 
tender, provided, where the time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer 
of his intention to cure and may then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase 
order or purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release 
number and the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, 
if any, shall be listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should 
be attached to the invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 
79457.  Payment shall not be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to
Seller if it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered
or given by the Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of
Lubbock with a view to securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or
amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event
this contract is canceled by Buyer pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other 
rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities.

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any 
special tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, 
such special tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer 
and to the extent feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid 
which Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind 
and specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods 
of purchase.  In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the 
Seller’s  current  prices  on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without 
liability to Seller for breach or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency 
has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for 
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established 
commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for the purpose of securing business.  For breach of 
viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to any other right of rights to cancel this 
contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover without liability and to
deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage 
or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do 
so shall render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will 
conform to the specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished 
by the Seller, if any. In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the 
specifications shall govern. Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller 
represents and warrants fault-free performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data 
(including, but not limited to calculating, comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware 
products delivered and services provided under this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may 
be from the effective date of this Contract. The obligations contained herein apply to products and services 
provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party involved in the creation or development of the products 
and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the 
obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock availing itself of any of its rights under the 
law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining to termination or default. The 
warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties specified in this Contract, 
and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the Seller’s liability 
which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document incorporated 
in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 
promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the 
event the product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or 
replacement at the Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a 
reasonable time, correction made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller
agrees to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement 
will give rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no 
warranty that the production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no 
event shall Buyer be liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of 
infringement of the like.  If Seller is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the 
Buyer to this effect in writing within two weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  
notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If 
Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the goods in accordance with the specifications will result in 
infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 
12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the 
availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds 
by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will 
terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal 
year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract 
is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 
contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give 
such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of 
termination. 
13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting 
them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered
portion of this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in 
lieu of any other remedies which Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the 
Buyer in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery 
of the Seller of a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the 
order is terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is 
in addition to and not in lieu of the rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment
of any terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the
party whose performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is
unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of 
any obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or 
delegation by Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with 
this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part 
by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by 
consideration and is in writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and 
performance  provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by 
Seller as part of his bid, is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also 
as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the 
Uniform Commercial Code is used in this agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Whereever
the term “Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial
Code as adopted in the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question 
the other party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to 
perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding 
party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 
employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs 
and expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract 
or which may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was 
caused through negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its 
employees, if any, and the Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys
and all costs and other expenses arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment 
shall be rendered against the Buyer in any such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and 
discharge the same Seller expressly understands and agrees that any bond required by this contract, or 
otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless 
and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of
this contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to
be in default of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into 
pursuant to this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to 
submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, 
sex or natural origin in consideration for an award. 
25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, 
equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 
its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 
and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision 
in, or related to, this document, this provision shall control. 
26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly 
authorized audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 
reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under 
this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, 
Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such 
audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any 
payments due Contractor. 
27.  ASSIGNING OR SUBLETTING THE CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, 
or any portion of the contract, without written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract 
Management.  Should consent be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on
insurance from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
29. HOUSE BILL 1295 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PARTIES.  House Bill 1295, adopted by the 84th 
Legislature, created §2252.908, Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering 
into certain contracts with a governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state 
agency a disclosure of interested parties at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the 
governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for completing Form 1295 are available at: 
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 
30. CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read,
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material 
contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and 
conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict 
between these terms and conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and 
conditions provided herein shall prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed 
upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
31. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 2252. The undersigned representative of the undersigned 
company or business, being an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, pursuant to Texas Government 
Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152, certify that the company named above is not listed on the website of 
the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies that are identified under Section 
806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further certify that should the above-named company enter 
into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas, which 
do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist Organization, I will immediately notify the City of 
Lubbock Purchasing and Contract Department.  
32. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 2270 This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is 
between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of 
$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A 
governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott 
Israel during the term of the contract. 
33.  TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 
Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 
contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. To the 
extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) 
of the Texas Government Code; the City of Lubbock has designated the following email address for which 
public information requests may be made by an emailed request. Please send this request to this email address 
for it to be processed: orr@mylubbock.us.



City of Lubbock (Sourcewell member # 25001)
206 Municipal Drive P.O. Box 2000 Lubbock, Texas 79457
Natalie Dodson | Support & Acquisition Coordinator
Phone: 806-775-2374  Email: NDodson@mylubbock.us

LP61-G product video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c5mft7ITkSQ

Madvac website: www.madvac.com

UNIT PRICE TOTAL
USD$ USD$

4 LP61G LP61 Gasoline Skid 14,983$   59,932$   
Includes the following standard features:

* 360° Rotating vacuum hose support boom

* Exhaust bag dust control system

* Emergency stop button

* Standard 25 ft. (7620 mm) vacuum hose

4 K61T Trailer conversion kit 1,654$   6,616$   
Available trailer attachment types: Ball 1-7/8'' (K60344) | Ball 2'' (K60345) | Pintle (K63117) n/c n/c

4 K63087 Spare wheel mounted on trailer 364$   1,456$   
K9899 Additional 8 in. (203 mm) diameter X 15 ft. (4572 mm) hose extension 332$   -$   

4 K13063 Additional 8 in. (203 mm) diameter X 25 ft. (7620 mm) hose extension 447$   1,788$   
4 K11793 2 micron interior cylindrical filter cartridge  (for additional dust control) 492$   1,968$   
4 63271 Litter collector bags (100 bags) 243$   972$   

Exprolink Inc. offers a 1-year (1000 hours) limited parts & labor WARRANTY n/c n/c
WS61-2 Extended warranty coverage: 1 additional year (2-year / 2000 hours) 800$   -$   
WS61-3 Extended warranty coverage: 2 additional years (3-year / 3000 hours) 1,500$   -$   

Sub Total 72,732$   
Transport (includes order preparation + custom & brokerage fees) Included

Net USD 72,732$   
Quote valid 90 days

Lead time: 4-6 months once purchase order is received
Upon delivery, on-site operator and maintenance training provided by Exprolink / Madvac or authorized Madvac dealer

* Purchase order to the attention of
 Exprolink / Madvac: 2170 rue de la Province, Longueuil, QC J4G 1R7 Canada  Tel: 855-651-0444

* Payment via wire transfer

* Please indicate on your purchase order:
 - Sourcewell member number
- Exprolink / Madvac Sourcewell contract number 122017-EXP
- Exprolink / Madvac quote number
- Complete bill-to and ship-to address with contact name and phone number
- Specify if ship-to address has a loading dock (or not) for delivery (*important)

JD Mauk
Regional Sales Manager – Central USA 
Exprolink / Madvac
Cell: 1-832-948-9636
jdmauk@exprolink.com

Quote Number: 129020

QTY PART NO. DESCRIPTION

LP61-G Portable Litter Vacuum

CUSTOMER
DATE 04-Nov-21

TERMS
Net 30 days 
after delivery

Madvac LP61-G Quote

INSURANCE REQUIRED: 

Commercial General Liability, per occurrence- $500,000 

General Aggregate. 

To include products of complete operations endorsement 

Automotive Liability- Combined Single limit for Any Auto - 

$500,000

Worker's Compensation Amounts- $500,000 or Employer's 

Liability - $500,000.  Copies of endorsements are required.

City of Lubbock is named as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the 

City of Lubbock on liability coverages. To include products of completed operations endorsements. Waiver of subrogation provided on 

the workers' compensation. 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

-$                                

Agenda Item November 16, 2021

(4) LP61-G Litter Vacuums (5221) 72,732                         

9009A TerrainCut Rough Mower (5221) 73,404                         

Encumbered/Expended To Date 146,136                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 2,756,842                    

Remaining Appropriation 2,756,842                    

Total Appropriation 2,902,978$                  

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

November 16, 2021

92720

General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92720

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the General Fund.

4211 - Codes Administration

(2) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 12010030 and 12010038) - $56,000

(1) 3/4 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 22001050) - $32,000

(1) 1/2 ton pickup, toolbox, lightbar, radios (NEW) - $29,978

4311 - Building Safety

(1) 1/2 ton pick-up (replacing 12010055) - $25,000

4525 - Traffic Operations

(1) 48" digging depth trencher (replacing 92001015) - $55,000

4531 - Paved Streets

(1) Steel Drum Roller with 51"-55" width (replacing 92009162) - $65,000

(1) Towable roller with rear vibration and split front drum (replacing 92010063) - $75,000

(1) Walk behind roller (replacing N/A) - $8,000

5221 - Park Maintenance

(1) John Deere 9009A Terrain Cut Mower (replacing 02004001) - $85,000

(3) Litter Vacuum LP61-G (replacing N/A) - $75,000

(1) Tandem 10k Utility Trailer (replacing 02001116) - $6,000

5311 - Animal Services 

(1) 3/4 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with animal transport body (replacing 22011119) - $52,000

5414 - Environmental Health

(1) Mid-size SUV (NEW) - $32,000

5419 - Vector Control

(2) 3/4 ton 4x4 with Flatbed (replacing 22003168 and 22004082) - $60,000

5615 - Lubbock Fire Rescue

(1) 50' Aerial (NEW) - $200,000

(2) 1/2 ton, crew cab, 4x4 pickup (replacing 12009169 and 12007135) - $64,000

5811 - Residential Collection

(1) Roll-Off (replacing 82010001) - $160,000

(1) 3/4 Ton, Crew Cab, 4x4 (replacing 12008154) - $33,000

(4) Automated Side Loader (replacing 82012019, 82014014, 82014032, and 82014029) - $1,280,000

5812 - Alley Maintenance 

(1) 12 yard dump with salt spreader hookups (replacing 82008181) - $200,000

(1) CAT 120 Motor Grader (replacing 82008204) - $265,000



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92720

5815 - Solid Waste Disposal

(1) 3/4 Ton, Crew Cab, 4x4, service body, Air Compressor (replacing 32013016) - $45,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$2,902,978 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Total Project Appropriation  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Total Funding Sources  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an acceptance of the
FY2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
United States Department of Justice, and the Office of the Attorney General.

Item Summary
This item is an acceptance of $203,957 from the United States Department of Justice for the Edward
Byrne Memorial Justice Grant Program to fund the Lubbock County Joint Enforcement Initiative
Program. The City of Lubbock and Lubbock County are each eligible to receive funding and agree to
share the grant equally, with each receiving $101,978.50. The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) will
manage the grant.

If awarded, 100% of the City's portion will be used to purchase electronic citation writers for patrol
officers.

Fiscal Impact
The City's portion of the grant is $101,978.50 and does not require a local match.

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
Award Letter 
Program Narrative 
Budget Narrative 
Budget Detail 













































































 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an interlocal agreement
with Lubbock County, Texas, allocating and transferring 50% of the City's Justice Assistance Grant
(JAG) award, under the FY2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant Program, to Lubbock County, in
order to fund the Lubbock County Joint Enforcement Initiative.

Item Summary
This interlocal agreement with Lubbock County, Texas funds the Lubbock County Joint Enforcement
initiative program, utilizing $203,957 awarded from the FY2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant
Program.  The City of Lubbock and Lubbock County are each eligible to receive funding and agree to
share the grant equally, with each receiving $101,978.50. The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) will
manage the grant.

Fiscal Impact
The City's portion of the grant is $101,978.50 and does not require a local match.

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
Interlocal Agreement 
Program Narrative 
Budget Narrative 
Budget Detail 

































 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0155, for Zone Case 1624-A, a
request of OJD Engineering, LLC for SDIRA Wealth, for a zone change from High-Density Apartment
District (A-2) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at: 2405 North Avenue N, located
north of Wabash Street and east of North Avenue P, on 15.164 acres of unplatted land out of Block A,
Section 78. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 1624-A Ordinance 
Zone Case 1624-A Staff Report 
Zone Case 1624-A Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1624-A 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant OJD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  SDIRA Wealth 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2536 and zoned Transition (T).
• April 6, 1960, Zone Case 0804: This property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Single-Family District 

(R-1) through Ordinance No. 3093.
• October 9, 1969, Zone Case 1624: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) to High-

Density Apartment District (A-2) through Ordinance No. 5761. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 49
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The property was annexed in 1958 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the north are zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and A-2 with a Special Exception for 
Townhomes. The properties to the south, east, and west are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and are developed 
with single-family residences or subdivided as residential lots. Property to the southeast is zoned Single-Family 
District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 2405 North Avenue N, north of Wabash Street and east of North Avenue P on 
15.164 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 78. The applicant is requesting to rezone the property 
from A-2 to R-1A. 

Current zoning:  High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Requested zoning: Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current A-2 zoning is “to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible land 
uses in harmony with lower-density uses.”  



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed R-1A zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses, and to provide a ‘quality environment’ for the residents of the district and city.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is north of Wabash Street and east of North Avenue P, both of which are 
designated as local streets. Local streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions, or local business districts. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Low Density Residential” land uses. The proposed zone change 
to R-1A is consistent with this designation and conforms to the principles of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to existing 
residential areas.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses but may require additional public improvements, as the property 
is currently unsubdivided. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documents
I. Notification Replies 

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2021 806-775-2109
ahenry@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1624-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Wabash Street and Avenue 
P.   

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Wabash Street 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue P 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001093












View North. View East—Subject Property

View South. View West.









 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0164, for Zone Case 1927-C, a
request of Darcey Achin for Godbold Multi Arts, Inc., for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2)
Specific Use to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for an Event Center, at 2601 19th Street, located
south of 19th Street and west of University Avenue, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 7, Lot 1 and the
East 26.5 feet of Lot 2. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
5-2.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 1927-C Ordinance 
Zone Case 1927-C Staff Report 
Zone Case 1927-C Documentation 









Page 1 of 3 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1927-C 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant Darcey Achin 

Property Owner  Godbold Multi Arts Inc. 

Council District  3 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• March 13, 1941: Ordinance No. 661. This property was originally zoned Apartment District (D).
• April 6, 1955: Ordinance No, 1695. This property was rezoned from Apartment District (D) to Multi-Family

District (R-3).
• December 20, 1973; Ordinance No. 6770. Zone Case 1927: This property was rezoned from R-3 to C-3

Specific Use for a Hotel or Motel with Alcohol Sales for on premise or off premise consumption as an
incidental use.

• May 13, 1982; Ordinance No. 8312. Zone Case 1927-A: The site plan for the property’s Specific Use for a
Hotel or Motel with Alcohol Sales for on premise or off premise consumption as an incidental was
amended to include office uses.

• May 13, 1993; Ordinance No. 9609. Zone Case 1927-B: This property was rezoned from R-3 and C-3 Specific
Use to C-2 Specific Use for Theater and Staff or Visiting Artist Living Quarters.

• July 8, 2009; Ordinance No. 2009-O0055. Zone Case 2134-D: A portion of this property was zoned
from C-2 Specific Use for Theater and Staff or Visiting Artist Living Quarters to C-4 limited to a
restaurant with a separate exterior entrance to a bar area.

• July 1, 2021; Zone Case 1927-C: This case was presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission and was
postponed to July 29th in order to update the zone change boundary.

• July 29, 2021; Zone Case 1927-C: This case was presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission and
was postponed to October 7th.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 29
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 5

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was previously developed with St. Mary’s of the Plains Hospital and Al Hambra Hotel and 
Restaurant. The structure was built in 1936. 

Adjacent Property Development 
To the north across 19th Street is Texas Tech University, which is zoned Single-Family District (R-1). To the east 
are the Colony House Apartments and Lutheran Student Center zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM). Properties 
to the south are developed with single family homes and zoned R-1. To the west is the Staybridge Suites hotel, 
zoned R-3 and Café J which is zoned C-4. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2601 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of University Avenue. 
The applicant requests a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use to Commercial District (C-4) 
Specific Use for an Event Center on a property described as Ellwood Place Addition, Block 7, Lot 1 and East 26.5’ 
of Lot 2. 
 
Current zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use 
 
Requested zoning:  Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for an Event Center 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2 zoning is, “… to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 
intersections of major thoroughfares.” 
 
The intent of the requested C-4 zoning is, “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or 
federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent 
residential areas should be carefully considered.” 
 
The intent of the requested Specific Use zoning is, “… to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the zoning ordinance, provided the 
intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along 19th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are intended to move high volumes of traffic at relatively high speeds. The 
current infrastructure is suitable for the requested zone change in this location. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area, there is C-4 zoning existing directly to the 
west of the subject property. It is important to note that there is a residential neighborhood to the south of the 
property and “because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent 
residential areas should be carefully considered” (Sec. 40.03.2231 of the Code of Ordinances). 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Commercial/Light Retail uses. The proposed zone 
change to C-4 would bring the property into alignment with the FLUP. This area would also be considered a 
“retail node” because of its proximity to a major thoroughfare intersection. Uses located in a retail node are 
intended to be commercial.    
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The proposed use for this property was recently 
considered to fall under the categorization of “dance hall”, however the City Council approved an amendment 
to the zoning ordinances to distinguish an event center from a dance hall. An Event Center is now permitted as 
a Specific Use in C-2, C-3, and C-4 districts through Section 40.03.3103 (d)(1) and 40.03.3103 (f)(3). An event 
center is defined as “A public or privately owned structure or area used for the purposes of public performances, 
private receptions or parties, conferences, ceremonies or similar attractions that may generate heavy traffic. 
Accessory uses may include food preparation facilities, concessions, offices, and restaurants” (Sec. 
40.01.003(64a)). It is important to note that the subject property abuts a residential neighborhood to the south 
and “compatibility with adjacent residential areas should be carefully considered” when rezoning to C-4 
(according to Section 40.03.2231 of the Code of Ordinance).  

 



Page 3 of 3 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-3147 806-775-2109
bshillings@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1927-C 

 

Allowable Uses:    Commercial District (C-4) 

     Specific Use for an Event Center  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
divided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523












1927-C 

 

  

Subject property. View to the south. View to the east. 

View to the north. View to the west. 

  



Lubbock Planning Department 

PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 

    Project Information 

     Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

     Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes           No      Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes            No      

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

 Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

    Owner Information 

 Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 

by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

2601 19th

theater, restraunt c2 c4 r3

c4 specific use for a dance hall

Darcey Achin

LBK FOOD PARK and Vintage Godbold Theater

2601 19th Lubbock TX

79410 (806)392-3677 d.achin@yahoo.com

05/26/2021 Darcey Achin

 Godbold Multi arts inc

Carlton Godbold

2601 19th Lubbock TX

79410 (806)787-0465 carltongodbold@yahoo.com

05/26/2021 Carlton Godbold

05/26/2021 Darcey Achin

✔





















 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0156, for Zone Case 2538-W, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located south of 4th Street and east of Upland
Avenue, on 73.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
6-0-1.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 2538-W Ordinance 
Zone Case 2538-W Staff Report 
Zone Case 2538-W Documentation 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2538-W 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant  AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner   806 Land Group, LLC 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 27, 1984: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance No. 8660.
• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: This property was zoned from Transition (T) to Single-Family District

(R-1) through Ordinance No. 8827.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 17
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and has remained vacant. There is a middle school developed between 
the two properties. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The subject property is surrounded by Single-Family District (R-1) zoning, with some additional Two-Family 
District (R-2) and Family Apartment District (A-1) zoning to the west. There are some established residential 
homes to the west and a middle school developed directly between the two subject properties. The remaining 
land around the subject properties is vacant.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located south of 4th Street and east Upland Avenue, on 73.45 acres of unplatted land out 
of Block JS Sec 10. The applicant requests a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District 
(R-2). 

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) 

Requested zoning: Two-Family District (R-2) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 
increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 



Page 2 of 2 

accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 
high-density or non-residential districts. 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along 4th Street, 12th Street and Upland Avenue, with 4th Street designated 
as a Minor Arterial, 12th Street designated as a Collector, and Upland Avenue designated as a Principal Arterial 
by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation network, 
and are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 
Collector streets provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas. All of these 
roadways will be able to adequately serve the traffic associated with the uses in the R-2 district. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land uses. While R-2 is considered 
“Residential Medium Density,” it is appropriate for this area, adjacent to other residential zoning and land uses, 
and is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Principles.   

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential zoning and uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of use described in the R-2 zoning district, as the property is still unsubdivided.  

Attachments 

A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map 

Aerial Map D.
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies 

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-2109
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-W 

 

Allowable Uses:    Two-Family District R-2  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 4th Street, Upland Avenue 
and 12th Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

4th Street, 
Minor Arterial,    

Completed  

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Upland Avenue,     
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

12th Street, 
Collector, 

Future 

R.O.W 64 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W 64 feet, four-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107












2538-W 

 

  

 

Subject property view to the east. View to the north. 

View to the west. Subject property view to the south. 

  





 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 10, BLOCK JS, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(1 OF 2) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 32.54-acre tract of land located in Section 10, 

Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point for the southwest corner of said 32.54-acre tract, whence the southwest 

corner of Section 10, Block JS bears S 06°23’33” W, a distance of 5286.30’; 

 

THENCE S 88° 09’ 35” E a distance of 555.16 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE S 01° 41’ 25” W a distance of 1637.91 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE N 88° 06’ 14” W a distance of 934.92 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE N 01° 39’ 56” E a distance of 1337.00 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE S 88° 09’ 35” E a distance of 379.68 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE N 01° 50’ 47” E a distance of 300.00 to the Point of Beginning and containing 

approximately 32.54 acres. 

 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a 

survey made upon the ground.  

 

   

August 20, 2021 



 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 10, BLOCK JS, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(2 OF 2) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 40.91-acre tract of land located in Section 10, 

Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point for the southwest corner of said 40.91-acre tract, whence the southwest 

corner of Section 10, Block JS bears S 06°26’48” W, a distance of 659.87’; 

 

THENCE N 01° 39’ 56” E a distance of 1878.79 feet to a point of curvature; 

 

THENCE northeasterly, along a curve to the right, an arc distance of 40.16 feet, said curve 

having a radius of 25.50 feet, a delta angle of 90° 13’ 50”, a chord distance of 36.13 feet and a 

chord bearing of N 46° 46’ 51” E, to a point of tangency; 

 

THENCE S 88° 06’ 14” E a distance of 74.27 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE N 89° 47’ 48” E a distance of 150.12 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE S 88° 07’ 29” E a distance of 684.55 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE S 01° 41’ 25” W a distance of 1907.54 feet to a point of intersection; 

 

THENCE N 88° 19’ 28” W a distance of 933.63 to the Point of Beginning and containing 

approximately 40.91 acres. 

 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a 

survey made upon the ground.  

 

   

August 20, 2021 

 



TRACT "A"
FRENSHIP MIDDLE SCHOOL

VOLUME 9482, PAGE 44 (PLAT)
22.727 ACRES

U
PL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N
VO

LU
M

E 
94

82
, P

AG
E 

44

N
O

T 
PL

AT
TE

D
RE

C
O

RD
 O

W
N

ER
: B

U
RG

AM
Y

C
C

FN
: 2

01
20

26
34

9

N
O

T 
PL

AT
TE

D
RE

C
O

RD
 O

W
N

ER
: B

U
RG

AM
Y

VO
LU

M
E 

54
5,

 P
AG

E 
38

3

RECORD OWNER:
BURGAMY

VOLUME 1512, PAGE 452

NOT PLATTED
RECORD OWNER: MCP ENTERPRISES, LLC

CCFN: 2008005489

NOT PLATTED
3 AC

RECORD OWNER: MCKIBBEN
VOLUME 10482, PAGE 285

(TO BE DEDICATED BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT)

(P
RO

PO
SE

D
)

R-
O

-W
 T

O
 B

E 
D

ED
IC

AT
ED

BY
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T

(P
RO

PO
SE

D
)

R-
O

-W
 T

O
 B

E 
D

ED
IC

AT
ED

BY
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T

N88°06'14"W - 934.92'

S88°09'35"E - 379.68'

S88°09'35"E - 555.16'

S0
1°

41
'2

5"
W

 - 
16

37
.9

1'

N
01

°3
9'

56
"E

 - 
13

37
.0

0'

N
01

°5
0'

47
"E

 - 
30

0.
00

'

N88°19'28"W - 933.63'

S0
1°

41
'2

5"
W

 - 
19

07
.5

4'

N
01

°3
9'

56
"E

 - 
18

78
.7

9'

S88°07'29"E - 684.55'

N89°47'48"E
150.12'

S88°06'14"E
74.27'R=25.50' L=40.16' Δ=90°13'50"

CH= 36.13' N46°46'51"E

(PROPOSED)
BURGAMY PARK NORTH,

LOTS 56 THROUGH 361 AND
TRACTS "A" & "B"

(PROPOSED)
BURGAMY PARK NORTH,

LOTS 1 THROUGH 361 AND
TRACTS "A" & "B"

(PROPOSED)
BURGAMY PARK ,

LOTS 62 THROUGH 372 AND
TRACTS "A" THROUGH "D"

(PROPOSED)
BURGAMY PARK ,

LOTS 62 THROUGH 372 AND
TRACTS "A" THROUGH "D"

BURGAMY PARK NORTH,
LOTS 1 THROUGH 55

BU
RG

AM
Y 

PA
RK

,
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RO
U

G
H

 6
1

RECORD OWNER:
MCP ENTERPRISES, LLC

CCFN: 2008005489

POB

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF SECTION 10, BLOCK JS
BEARS S06°26'48"W AT A
DISTANCE 659.87' FROM
THIS POINT.

POB

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF SECTION 10, BLOCK JS
BEARS S06°23'33"W AT A
DISTANCE 5286.30' FROM
THIS POINT.

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

200'0 100'
SCALE: 1" = 200'

400'

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION EXHIBIT

A 73.45 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN
SECTION 10, BLOCK JS, LUBBOCK COUNTY,

TEXAS

 BURGAMY PARK WEST,
AN ADDITION LOCATED IN SECTION 10, BLOCK JS,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

        - ZONING REQUEST R-2 FROM R-1 (73.45 ACRES)
Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPELS Reg. # 10178500

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

© 2021 ALL RIGHTS RESERVED
ELS/CAD

PROPERTY OWNER:  806 LAND GROUP, LLC
ADDRESS:  P.O. BOX 53417, LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79453
PHONE:  806-781-7928
JOB NUMBER:  19079

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
18TH PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCHESTER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
17TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCHESTER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
8TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
7TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
19TH STREET (S.H. 114)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH STREET (F.M. 2255)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
10TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
141

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
145

AutoCAD SHX Text
142

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
156

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
157

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
165

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
159

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
153

AutoCAD SHX Text
161

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
168

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
169

AutoCAD SHX Text
166

AutoCAD SHX Text
167

AutoCAD SHX Text
172

AutoCAD SHX Text
173

AutoCAD SHX Text
164

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
175

AutoCAD SHX Text
176

AutoCAD SHX Text
177

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
171

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
224

AutoCAD SHX Text
223

AutoCAD SHX Text
222

AutoCAD SHX Text
221

AutoCAD SHX Text
220

AutoCAD SHX Text
219

AutoCAD SHX Text
218

AutoCAD SHX Text
217

AutoCAD SHX Text
216

AutoCAD SHX Text
215

AutoCAD SHX Text
214

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
211

AutoCAD SHX Text
210

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
208

AutoCAD SHX Text
207

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
251

AutoCAD SHX Text
252

AutoCAD SHX Text
253

AutoCAD SHX Text
254

AutoCAD SHX Text
255

AutoCAD SHX Text
256

AutoCAD SHX Text
257

AutoCAD SHX Text
258

AutoCAD SHX Text
259

AutoCAD SHX Text
260

AutoCAD SHX Text
261

AutoCAD SHX Text
262

AutoCAD SHX Text
263

AutoCAD SHX Text
264

AutoCAD SHX Text
265

AutoCAD SHX Text
266

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
269

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
273

AutoCAD SHX Text
274

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
278

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
282

AutoCAD SHX Text
283

AutoCAD SHX Text
284

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
286

AutoCAD SHX Text
287

AutoCAD SHX Text
340

AutoCAD SHX Text
341

AutoCAD SHX Text
342

AutoCAD SHX Text
343

AutoCAD SHX Text
344

AutoCAD SHX Text
345

AutoCAD SHX Text
346

AutoCAD SHX Text
347

AutoCAD SHX Text
348

AutoCAD SHX Text
349

AutoCAD SHX Text
350

AutoCAD SHX Text
326

AutoCAD SHX Text
356

AutoCAD SHX Text
355

AutoCAD SHX Text
354

AutoCAD SHX Text
353

AutoCAD SHX Text
352

AutoCAD SHX Text
351

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
157

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
161

AutoCAD SHX Text
166

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
156

AutoCAD SHX Text
159

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
165

AutoCAD SHX Text
164

AutoCAD SHX Text
168

AutoCAD SHX Text
167

AutoCAD SHX Text
169

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
171

AutoCAD SHX Text
172

AutoCAD SHX Text
173

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
175

AutoCAD SHX Text
176

AutoCAD SHX Text
222

AutoCAD SHX Text
223

AutoCAD SHX Text
224

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
226

AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
228

AutoCAD SHX Text
229

AutoCAD SHX Text
230

AutoCAD SHX Text
231

AutoCAD SHX Text
232

AutoCAD SHX Text
233

AutoCAD SHX Text
234

AutoCAD SHX Text
235

AutoCAD SHX Text
236

AutoCAD SHX Text
237

AutoCAD SHX Text
238

AutoCAD SHX Text
239

AutoCAD SHX Text
240

AutoCAD SHX Text
241

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
273

AutoCAD SHX Text
274

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
278

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
282

AutoCAD SHX Text
283

AutoCAD SHX Text
284

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
286

AutoCAD SHX Text
287

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
289

AutoCAD SHX Text
323

AutoCAD SHX Text
318

AutoCAD SHX Text
319

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
321

AutoCAD SHX Text
343

AutoCAD SHX Text
322

AutoCAD SHX Text
324

AutoCAD SHX Text
325

AutoCAD SHX Text
326

AutoCAD SHX Text
327

AutoCAD SHX Text
328

AutoCAD SHX Text
329

AutoCAD SHX Text
330

AutoCAD SHX Text
331

AutoCAD SHX Text
332

AutoCAD SHX Text
333

AutoCAD SHX Text
334

AutoCAD SHX Text
335

AutoCAD SHX Text
336

AutoCAD SHX Text
337

AutoCAD SHX Text
342

AutoCAD SHX Text
344

AutoCAD SHX Text
361

AutoCAD SHX Text
345

AutoCAD SHX Text
346

AutoCAD SHX Text
347

AutoCAD SHX Text
348

AutoCAD SHX Text
349

AutoCAD SHX Text
350

AutoCAD SHX Text
351

AutoCAD SHX Text
352

AutoCAD SHX Text
353

AutoCAD SHX Text
354

AutoCAD SHX Text
355

AutoCAD SHX Text
356

AutoCAD SHX Text
357

AutoCAD SHX Text
358

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
359

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCHESTER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCHESTER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPLAND AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHING: 7,275,124.64 EASTING:    910,580.24 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHING: 7,279,721.09 EASTING:    911,094.89 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slaton          Hwy.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis   Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop       289

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text
114th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Highway 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Hwy. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
34th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Upland  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frankford           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slide            Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Indiana           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
University      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis Hwy.   US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brownfield Hwy.        US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erskine           Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
University    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION







 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0157, for Zone Case 2538-Y, a
request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from Transition (T) and Single-Family District (R-1) to
Two-Family District (R-2), at 7311 34th Street, located south of 34th Street and west of Upland Avenue,
on 34.294 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 39. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 2538-Y Ordinance 
Zone Case 2538-Y Staff Report 
Zone Case 2538-Y Documentation 











Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2538-Y 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant  AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner   Betenbough Homes 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 27, 1984: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through

Ordinance No. 8660.
• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: A portion of this property was zoned from Transition (T) to Single-

Family District (R-1) through Ordinance No. 8827.
• January 14, 1999: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance

number 10117.
• September 28, 2021: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through

Ordinance No. 2021-O0133.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 16
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
Portions of the subject property were annexed in 1984, 1999, and 2021 and have all remained vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 
A new residential neighborhood is currently being developed to the north and is zoned R-1. To the east of the 
subject property, land is developed with single-family homes and is zoned R-1. To the south and west, there are 
manufacturing uses as well as vacant land. The areas are zoned T and M-2 respectively.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The applicant requests a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) and Transition (T) to Two-Family District 
(R-2).The subject property is located south of 34th Street and west Upland Avenue, on 34.294 acres of unplatted 
land out of Block AK Sec 39.  

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) and Transition (T) 

Requested zoning: Two-Family District (R-2) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the current T zoning is, “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 
increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 
accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 
high-density or non-residential districts.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The subject property has access from 34th Street which is designated as a Principal Arterial, by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local 
traffic and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land uses. While R-2 zoning is 
typically considered medium density residential, the Comprehensive Plan notes that land uses in these areas can 
take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity of the uses in R-2 is appropriate for this area 
and the request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate in this location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the R-2 zoning district, as the property has not been platted. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-3147 806-775-2109
bshillings@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-Y 

 

Allowable Uses:    Two-Family District (R-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 34th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

34th Street 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified), Partially 
Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 2-lane, 
divided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5-lane, 
divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107










2538-Y 

 

  

View to the north. View to the east. 

View to the south. Subject Property. View to the west. 

  



‘1 Lubbock Planning Department
fr Cityof POBox2000/l3l4AvenueK

Lubbock Lubbock, TX 79457
TEXAS APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE

Project Information

Location or Address: 7311 34th Street (South of 34th & West of Upland)

Lots/Tracts: LCAD R#: Ri 02962 & LCAD R#: Ri 26622

A 34.294 Acre Tract of Land in Section 39, Block AK, G.C. & S.F. RR. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 228, Lubbock County, TexasSurvey & Abstract:

Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes No U Total Acreage of Request: 34.294

Existing Land Use: Agriculture
- Existing Zoning: I (Transitional)

Requested Zoning: R2 (To potentially build single family 45’s, 50’s, Cottage, Duplex, Townhome)

If property is not subdivided, will apreliminary plat be submitted? Yes No U

Representative/Agent Information fif different from owner)

Firm Name: See Below

Name:

Address:_________________________________________ City:______________________________ State:___________

ZIP Code:__________________ Telephone:_______________________ Email:____________________________

Applicant’s Signature:____________________________________

Date:_________________________________ Printed Name:

Owner Information

Firm Name: Betenbough Homes

Owner: Ronnie Wallace, Land Planner, Betenbough Homes

Address: 6305 82nd Street City:_Lubbock State: Texas

ZIP Code: 79424 Telephone: 806-412-661 1 Email: ronniew@betenbough.com

Property Owner’s Signature:_____________________________________________________________________

Date: July 29th, 2021 Printed Name:_Ronnie_Wallace

Preparer Information

Preparer’s Signature:

Date: 7/Z’t/2o1l Printe ame: Pfr,tk. M04
For City Use Only

Zone Case No:___________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date:

Request for zoning change from:_____________________________ To:_________________________________

Lots:____________________________________________ Blocks:_________________________________________________________

Addition:

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.





 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0158, for Zone Case 2573-S, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for North Park Development, Inc., for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC) and General Retail District (C-3) to High-Density Apartment
District (A-2) at 316 and 401 North Winston Avenue, located west of Winston Avenue and north of
Auburn Street, on 15.65 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 22. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by
a unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 2573-S Ordinance 
Zone Case 2573-S Staff Report 
Zone Case 2573-S Documentation 















Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2573-S 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  North Park Development, Inc. 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2536 and zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).
• May 13, 2004, Zone Case 2573-F: This property was zoned from R-1 to General Retail District (C-3) through

Ordinance 2004-O0051.
• December 19, 2006, Zone Case 2573-I: A portion of this property was zoned from C-3 to Interstate

Highway Commercial (IHC) through Ordinance 2006-O0125.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 5
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1958 and is vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the north and west of the subject property are zoned C-3 and are vacant. The property to the 
south is zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM) and is developed with a hotel. The property to the east is zoned 
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and has been developed with apartment buildings.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 316 and 401 North Winston Avenue, and is located west of Winston Avenue 
and north of Auburn Street on 15.65 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 22. The applicant requests 
to rezone the subject property from C-3 and IHC to A-2.  

Current zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Requested zoning: High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The intent of the current IHC zoning is “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.”  
 
The intent of the proposed A-2 zoning is “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 
land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 
and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 
uses.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is along Winston Avenue, which is designated as a Collector by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collector streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower 
speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Comprehensive 
Plan, page 87). The proposed rezoning will be suitable for this type of road.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The proposed use is for apartments. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property for “Commercial/Light Retail” land uses. Although A-2 zoning 
is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate for this area, is compatible with the A-2 zoning to the 
east, and is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial and apartment zoning districts and uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the A-2 zoning district, as the property has not been platted. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and supporting documents 

 
Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A     Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 2573-S 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation:  

High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

The proposed development has points of access from Winston Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Winston Avenue 
Collector 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001142










2573-S 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View west. View of subject property. View north. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View east. View of adjacent property. View south. 





 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 22, BLOCK A, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 3, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 3) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 15.65 acre tract of land located in Section 22, 

Block A, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point for the southeast corner of said 15.65 acre tract, whence the most 

northern, northeast corner of Tract C1, North Park (CCFN: 2009034314). 

 

THENCE S 54° 52’ 00” W an approximate distance of 211.64 feet; 

 

THENCE N 35° 08’ 00” W an approximate distance of 23.50 feet; 

 

THENCE S 54° 52’ 00” W an approximate distance of 63.00 feet; 

 

THENCE N 35° 08’ 00” W an approximate distance of 80.98 feet; 

 

THENCE S 54° 52’ 00” W an approximate distance of 201.66 feet; 

 

THENCE S 35° 08’ 46” E an approximate distance of 319.47 feet; 

 

THENCE S 54° 53’ 36” W an approximate distance of 384.16 feet; 

 

THENCE Southwesterly along a curve to the left having a radius of 1071.42 feet, an arc length of 

101.47 feet, a central angle of 05° 25’ 34”, a chord distance of 101.43 feet, and a chord bearing of 

S 56° 51’ 35” W to a point of intersection along the southwestern property line of this tract; 

 

THENCE N 35° 06’ 48” W an approximate distance of 604.23 feet; 

 

THENCE N 10° 29’ 39” E an approximate distance of 326.32 feet; 

 

THENCE N 56° 06’ 06” E an approximate distance of 944.83 feet; 

 

THENCE S 01° 49’ 19” W an approximate distance of 182.70 feet; 

 

THENCE Southeasterly along a curve to the right having a radius of 530.00 feet, an arc length of 

342.10 feet, a central angle of 36° 58’ 58”, a chord distance of 336.19 feet, and a chord bearing of 

S 16° 40’ 52” E to a point of intersection along the northeastern property line of this tract; 

 

THENCE S 35° 06’ 04” E an approximate distance of 135.88 feet to the Point of Beginning and 

containing approximately 15.65 acres. 

 

 



 

 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 22, BLOCK A, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 2 of 3, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 3) 

 

 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a 

survey made upon the ground.  

 

 

Prepared for:  North Loop 289, LLC 

  September 2, 2021 



200'0 100'
SCALE:  1"=200'

400'

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION
EXHIBIT

(SHEET 3)

A 15.65 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
LOCATED IN SECTION 22,

BLOCK A, LUBBOCK COUNTY,
TEXAS

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N WINSTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N LOOP 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
N LOOP 289 ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH PARK TRACT A VOLUME 9001 P.345

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH PARK TRACT L CCFN: 2017029605

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED  BLK A SEC 22 AB 1543 1544 TR D3 OWNER: NORTH HUB INVEST LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH PARK TRACT C1 CCFN: 2009034314

AutoCAD SHX Text
N WINSTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH PARK TRACT A VOLUME 9001 P.345

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED  BLK JS SEC 1 AB 281 TR 1 & TR 4A2 AC OWNER: NORTH LOOP 289 LTD

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. FROM THIS POINT, THE MOST NORTHERN, NORTHEAST CORNER OF TRACT C1, NORTH PARK (CCFN: 2009034314)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE SECTION 22, BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED  BLK A SEC 22 AB 1543 1544 TR D & E OWNER: NORTH LOOP 289 LTD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED  BLK A SEC 22 AB 1543 1544 TR D & E OWNER: NORTH LOOP 289 LTD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED  BLK A SEC 22 AB 1543 1544 TR D & E OWNER: NORTH LOOP 289 LTD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
        - ZONING REQUEST A-2 FROM TRACT (C-3) GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT AND (IHC) INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 	COMMERCIAL	

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slaton          Hwy.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis   Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop       289

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text
114th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Highway 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Hwy. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
34th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Upland  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frankford           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slide            Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Indiana           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
University      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis Hwy.   US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brownfield Hwy.        US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erskine           Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
University    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wood   Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guava        Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Municipal      Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th    Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0159, for Zone Case 2895-Q, a
request of Betenbough Homes, for a Specific Use for an Event Center, on property zoned General Retail
District (C-3), at 6305 82nd Street and 6303 82nd Street, Suite B, located south of 82nd Street and east
of Milwaukee Avenue, Betenbough II Addition, Tracts A and B1 and Betenbough Garden Office
Addition, Tract A. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning and
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by
a unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 2895-Q Ordinance 
Zone Case 2895-Q Staff Report 
Zone Case 2895-Q Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2895-Q 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant  Betenbough Homes 

Property Owner   Betenbough Homes 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 13, 1984: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance 8688.
• December 04, 2000, Zone Case 2895: This property was zoned from Transition (T) to General Retail

(C-3), High Density Apartment (A-2), Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use and Two-Family (R-2)
through Ordinance 2000-O0073.

• December 12, 2002, Zone Case 2895-A: This property was zoned from Single-Family District (R-1)
Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2) Specific Use, High Density Apartment (A-2) and Garden Office
(GO) through Ordinance 2002-O0128.

• May 26, 2020, Zone Case 2895-O: This property was zoned from Garden Office (GO), High Density
Apartment (A-2) and General Retail (C-3) to General Retail (C-3) through Ordinance 2020-O0069.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 12
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and a commercial office building was constructed in 2018. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the north and west are developed with fast food restaurants and zoned General Retail District 
(C-3) and Local Retail District (C-2). The properties to the south and east are zoned C-2 and developed with a 
Wal-Mart and a commercial office, respectively.    

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 6305 82nd Street and 6303 82nd Street, Suite B and is located south of 82nd 
Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 3.812 acres of land, Betenbough II Addition, Tracts A and B1 and 
Betenbough Garden Office Addition, Tract A. The applicant requests a Specific Use for an Event Center on 
property zoned C-3. 

Current zoning:  General Retail District (C-3)   

Requested zoning: Specific Use for an Event Center 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is, “to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along 82nd Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation network and are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use of an Event Center and will not need additional public 
improvements. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-2109
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2895-Q 

 

Allowable Uses:    Specific Use District   General Retail District C-3  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 82nd Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

82nd Street, 
Principal Arterial,    

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001526
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272








2895-Q 

 

  

 

Subject property view to the north. View to the south. 

View to the east. View to the north. 

  





Lubbock Planning Department 

PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 

    Project Information 

     Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

     Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes           No      Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes            No      

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

 Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

    Owner Information 

 Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 

by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

6305 82nd street

See attached legal description

See attached

3.812

commercial c-3 specific use

C-3 specific use for event center

Chris Berry

Betenbough Homes

6305 82nd Street Lubbock TX

79424 8060-789-9558 chrisb@betenbough.com

9-2-2021 Chris Berry

✔

✔



AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 

6515 68th Street, Suite 300 TBPE Reg. # F-9197 Office: (806) 771-5976 

Lubbock, Texas  79424 TBPELS Reg. #101785-00  Fax: (806) 771-7625 

 

AMD Engineering and Surveying 

DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING REQUEST IN 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 28, BLOCK AK, ABSTRACT NO. 750, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
A 3.812 acre tract of land located in the Northwest Quarter (NW/4) of Section 28, Block AK, Abstract No. 

750, Lubbock County, Texas, being comprised Betenbough Addition II, Tract “A” and Tract “B-1”, 

additions to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the maps, plats and/or dedication 

deeds thereof recorded (respectively) in Volume 8263, Page 297 and County Clerk’s File Number 

2015003550 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and an unplatted 0.7155 acre tract 

of land described in a Warranty Deed recorded in Clerk’s File Number 2018024849 of the Official Public 

Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said 3.812 acres being further described by metes and bounds as 

follows:  

 

BEGINNING at a point in the south right-of-way line of 82nd Street at the original northwest corner of 

said Betenbough Addition II, Tract “A”, for the northwest corner of this tract and having coordinates of 

Northing: 7,253,101.25 and Easting: 915,855.01 of the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas 

North Central Zone, whence the northwest corner of Section 28, Block AK, Abstract No. 750, Lubbock 

County, Texas, bears N. 01° 54’ 20” E. a distance of 55.00 feet and N. 88° 05’ 40” W. a distance of 758.40 

feet; 

 

THENCE S. 88° 05’ 40” E., along the south right-of-way line of said 82nd Street at a distance of 215.00 

feet pass the north common corner of said Tract “A” and Tract “B-1”, continuing for a total distance of 

423.96 feet to the most northerly northeast corner of said Tract “B-1” and this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 43° 34’ 13” E. a distance of 11.41 feet to the most easterly northeast corner of said Tract “B-

1” and this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 01° 48’ 09” W. a distance of 291.20 feet to the most easterly southeast corner of this said 

Tract “B-1” and this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 88° 10’ 52” W. a distance of 137.16 feet to an ell corner of said Tract “B-1” and this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 01° 50’ 34” W. a distance of 125.70 feet to a point for the most southerly southeast corner of 

said Tract “B-1” and this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 88° 02’ 44” W., at a distance of 80.00 feet pass the southwest corner of said Tract “B-1” and 

the southeast corner of said 0.7155 acre tract, same being the most easterly northeast corner of Wal-Mart 

Supercenter, Tract “A-1”, an addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the 

map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in County Clerk’s Plat and Dedication Number 

2008008387 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, continuing for a total distance of 

295.00 feet to an ell corner of said Wal-Mart Supercenter, Tract “A-1”, and the southwest corner of said 

0.7155 acre tract and this tract, having coordinates of Northing: 7,252,676.70 and Easting: 915,841.59 of 

the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone; 

 

THENCE N. 01° 49’ 05” E., at a distance of 144.86 feet pass the original west common corner of said 

Betenbough Addition II, Tract “A”, and 0.7155 acre tract, continuing for a total distance of 424.86 feet to 

the Point of Beginning. Bearings are relative to the north line of said Betenbough Addition II, Tract “A” 

and based on the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone. Distances are at 

surface, in U.S. survey feet. 

 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a survey made upon 

the ground. This description was compiled from information obtained in previous surveys and data contained 

within the recorded plats cited herein. 
 
20203 Betenbough Office Description for Zoning Case 



TRACT "B-1",
BETENBOUGH ADDITION II

(P&D #2015003550)

TRACTS A-1 & A-2
WAL-MART SUPERCENTER

(P&D #2008008387)

T
R

A
C

T
 C

-2

T
R

A
C

T
S
 C

-1
 &

 C
-2

W
A

L
-M

A
R

T
 S

U
P

E
R

C
E

N
T

E
R

(P
&

D
 #

2
0
0
8
0
1
7
5
2
2
)

TRACT A-1

N
O

T P
LATTED

0.
71

55
 A

C
RES

(C
C

FN
  2

01
80

24
84

9)

TRAC
T  "

A"

BETEN
BO

U
G

H
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 II

(V
O

L. 8
26

3,
 P

G
. 2

97
)

3.820 ACRES

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF

SECTION 28, BLOCK AK BEARS
N.01°54'20"E. 55.00' AND

N.88°05'40"W. 758.40'

FROM THIS POINT

NORTHING: 7,253,101.25

EASTING:       915,855.01

S.88°05'40"E. 423.96'

N.88°10'52"W.

137.16'
S

.0
1
°
4
9
'0

8
"W

.

1
2
5
.7

0
'

N.88°02'44"W. 295.00'

S.43°34'13"E.

11.41'

2
0
' 
U

E
 (

P
&

D
 #

2
0
1
5
0
0
3
5
5
0
)

DRE (BY P&D #2006024909)

5' UUE (VOL. 10120, PG. 320)

2
5
' 
A

C
E

 (
P

&
D

#
2
0
0
6
0
4
4
4
3
5
)

D
R

E
 (

B
Y

 P
&

D
 #

2
0
0
8
0
0
8
3
8
7
)

A
C

E
 (

C
C

F
N

 2
0
0
7
0
4
0
6
1
0
)

5' UUE (CCFN 2006044435)

10
0'

 D
RE

(P
&

D
 #

20
06

04
44

35
)

20' DRE (CCFN 2006044435)

UUE & GSE
(VOL. 8263, PG. 297)

2
0
' 
U

U
E

 &
 G

S
E

(V
O

L
. 
8
2
6
3
, 
P

G
. 
3
0
3
)

(55' R-O-W, VOL. 1112, PG. 343)

(55' R-O-W, VOL. 1112, PG. 344)

15' UUE (VOL. 8263, PG. 301)

UUE & GSE
(VOL. 8263, PG. 297)

2
0
' 
U

U
E

 &
 G

S
E

 (
V

O
L

.
1
0
1
2
0
, 
P

G
. 
3
2
0
)

30' UE (P&D
2006044435)

30' UE (P&D
2015003550)

NORTHWEST CORNER OF
SECTION 28, BLOCK AK

15' UUE (VOL. 8263, PG. 301)

18' UUE (P&D
2006024909)

A
C

E
 (

C
C

F
N

2
0
0
7
0
4
0
6
1
0
)

TRAC
TS 

A-1
 &

 A
-2

W
AL-M

ART S
U

PERC
EN

TER

(P
&

D
 #

20
08

00
83

87
)

LOTS 1-3, 4
A &

 4B

SPECTRA LUBBOCK SOUTHWEST

(P
&D #2006044435)

LOT 3

10' WLE (VOL. 5510, PG. 85)

S
.0

1
°
4
8
'0

9
"W

. 
2
9
1
.2

0
'

N
.0

1
°
4
9
'0

5
"E

. 
4
2
4
.8

6
'

NORTHING: 7,252,676.70

EASTING:      915,841.59

(80.00')

(215.00')

82ND STREET

(1
4
4
.8

6
')

25' 100'

50' 200'0'

LEGEND:

SCALE: 1" = 100'

HEAVY LINES INDICATE LIMITS OF SURVEY.

ACE = ACCESS EASEMENT.

DRE = DRAINAGE EASEMENT.

GSE = GARABAGE SERVICE EASEMENT.

UE = UTILITY EASEMENT.

UUE = UNDERGROUND UTILITY EASEMENT.

R-O-W = RIGHT-OF-WAY.

SPEC = SOUTH PLAINS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE.

CM = CONTROLLING MONUMENT.

PMRD = PHYSICAL MONUMENT OF RECORD DIGNITY.

CCFN = COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NUMBER.

BEARINGS ARE GRID BEARINGS RELATIVE TO THE TEXAS

COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983, TEXAS NORTH CENTRAL

ZONE. THE CONVERGENCE ANGLE TO TRUE NORTH IS

-01°53'11".

COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS

COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983, TEXAS NORTH CENTRAL ZONE.

DISTANCES AS SHOWN HEREON ARE AT SURFACE, IN U.S.

SURVEY FEET.

PREPARED SEPTEMBER 2, 2021

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

Phone: 806-771-5976

Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPELS Reg. # 10178500

AMD Engineering, LLC

6515 68th Street, Suite 300

Lubbock, TX  79424

JOB NUMBER: © 2021 ALL RIGHTS RESERVED20203

CAD

SKETCH OF A

3.820 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN

SECTION 28, BLOCK AK, ABST. NO. 750,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

(PARENT TRACTS: BETENBOUGH ADDITION II, TRACT “A” AND TRACT “B-1”,

ADDITIONS TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS,

ACCORDING TO THE MAPS, PLATS AND/OR DEDICATION DEEDS THEREOF

RECORDED (RESPECTIVELY) IN VOLUME 8263, PAGE 297 AND

COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NUMBER 2015003550 OF

THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS,

AND

AN UNPLATTED 0.7155 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A

WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN CLERK'S FILE NUMBER 2018024849 OF

THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS)

ZONE CHANGE REQUEST



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0160, for Zone Case 2918-B, a
request of Seventeen Services, Inc. for Keith McNeese, for a zone change from Garden Office District
(GO) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 10701 Upland Avenue, located east of Upland Avenue and
north of 109th Street, Devonshire Estates Addition, Tract A. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning and
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by
a unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 2918-B Ordinance 
Zone Case 2918-B Staff Report 
Zone Case 2918-B Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2918-B 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant Seventeen Services, Inc. 

Property Owner  Keith McNeese 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• January 14, 1999: This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through Ordinance No.

010117.
• September 13, 2001: This property was zoned Garden Office (GO) through Ordinance No. 2001-O0068.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 7
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
An office structure was built on this property in 2003. 

Adjacent Property Development 
To the east is a single family home on property zoned Single-Family District (R-1). To the south is vacant land 
zoned GO. To the west is vacant property zoned Commercial District (C-4) and a church zoned High-Density 
Apartment District (A-2). To the north is vacant land zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM). 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The property is addressed as 10701 Upland Avenue, located east of Upland Avenue and north of 109th Street, 
Devonshire Estates Addition, Tract A. The applicant is requesting a zone change from GO to AM. 

Current zoning: Garden Office District (GO) 

Requested zoning: Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current GO zoning is “…to provide for quality garden office development through proper 
planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 
compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 
commercial uses.” 

The intent of the proposed AM zoning is, “…to provide for quality medical and related development through 
proper planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure 
the compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 



Page 2 of 2 

facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a medical 
center.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along Upland Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial in the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 
2018. Principal Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional 
traffic. Speeds are relatively high on arterial streets and handle high volumes of traffic. This type of road can 
adequately handle the traffic associated with the uses allowed in the AM district. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use map designates this area for “Low-Density Residential” land uses. The AM district does not 
conform to the Future Land Use Map, but it does conform to the Comprehensive Plan’s concept of a neighborhood 
center, as it sits between two retail nodes along Upland Avenue.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and should not need additional public improvements to handle the 
uses allowed in the AM district. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Shane Spencer   Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2103  806-775-2109 
sspencer@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A     Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 2918-B 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation:  

Apartment Medical District (AM) 

The proposed development has points of access from Upland Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue, 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified), 
Partial 

R.O.W. 25 feet, 2-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001175










2918-B

View of adjacent property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 

View of subject property. View north.   View of adjacent property. View west. 



Lubbock Planning Department 

PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 Project Information 

Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes           No      Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?  Yes            No      

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

 Owner Information 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

 For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 

by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

10701 UPLAND AVE, LUBBOCK, TX 79424

DEVONSHIRE ESTATES TR A

1.51

COMMERCIAL SERVICE GO

AM

SEVENTEEN SERVICES LLC

TYLER GENTRY

1500 BROADWAY, STE. 200 LUBBOCK TX

79401 806-787-8533 TYLER@17SERVICES.COM

8/24/21 TYLER GENTRY 

CM WIGGLE LLC

CM WIGGLE LLC

3309 67TH ST #STE 22 LUBBOCK TX

79413 806-548-3392

8/24/21 KEITH MCNEESE

8/24/21 TYLER GENTRY

✔

10701 UPLAND AVE, LUBBOCK, TX 79424

DEVONSHIRE ESTATES TR A

1.51

COMMERCIAL SERVICE GO

AM

SEVENTEEN SERVICES LLC

TYLER GENTRY

1500 BROADWAY, STE. 200 LUBBOCK TX

79401 806-787-8533 TYLER@17SERVICES.COM

8/24/21 TYLER GENTRY

CM WIGGLE LLC

CM WIGGLE LLC

3309 67TH ST #STE 22 LUBBOCK TX

79413 806-548-3392

8/24/21 KEITH MCNEESE

8/24/21 TYLER GENTRY

✔



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0161, for Zone Case 2952-D, a
request of SPSM, LTD, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to General Retail District
(C-3), at 601 North Slide Road, located north of Erskine Street and west of Slide Road, North Pointe
Addition, Tract C. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 2952-D Ordinance 
Zone Case 2952-D Staff Report 
Zone Case 2952-D Documentation 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2952-D 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant SPSM, LTD 

Property Owner  SPSM, LTD 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2536 and zoned Transition (T).
• November 14, 2002, Zone Case 2952: This property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Local Retail

District (C-2) through Ordinance No. 2002-O0122.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 6
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The property was annexed in 1958 and has remained vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the north and west are unsubdivided vacant land zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 
Property to the south is unsubdivided vacant land zoned General Retail District (C-3). Property to the east is 
zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is developed with a drug store. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 601 North Slide Road, north of Erskine Street and west of Slide Road, North 
Pointe Addition, Tract C. The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from C-2 to C-3. 

Current zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2) 

Requested zoning: General Retail District (C-3) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2 zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods.”  

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is “to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is north of Erskine Street and west of Slide Road, both of which are designated 
as Principal Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan and can adequately handle the traffic associated with the 
uses in the C-3 district.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The other three corners at this intersection are zoned C-3. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial” land uses. The proposed zone change to C-3 is 
consistent with this designation and conforms to the principles of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to existing 
commercial uses and zoning.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not require additional public improvements to support 
the intensity of uses described in the C-3 zoning district. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry 
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-2021 
ahenry@mylubbock.us

Kristen Sager 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109
ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2952-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Erskine Street and Slide 
Road. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Erskine Street 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Slide Road 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272










View North—Subject Property View East.

View South. View West.







 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0162, for Zone Case 3031-B, a
request of SK Architecture Group for Nesloney Homes, for a zone change from Garden Office District
(GO) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 8309 Upland Avenue, located east of Upland Avenue and south of
82nd Street, Westwood Addition, Lot 4. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request.The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 6-1. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3031-B Ordinance 
Zone Case 3031-B Staff Report 
Zone Case 3031-B Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3031-B 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant  SK Architecture Group 

Property Owner   Nesloney Homes 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• January 14, 1999: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance 10117.
• February 10, 2005, Zone Case 3031: This property was zoned from Transition (T) to Garden Office (GO)

through Ordinance No. 2005-O0018.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 9
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1999 and has since remained vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the north and south are zoned Garden Office (GO) and are vacant. Properties to the east are 
zoned Transition (T) and developed with single-family homes. The property to the west is zoned Interstate 
Highway Industrial (IHI) and is developed with a warehouse.    

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 8309 Upland Avenue and is located south of 82rd Street and east of Upland 
Avenue, on 1.39 acres of land, on Lot 4, Westwood Addition. The applicant requests a zone change from GO to 
Local Retail District (C-2). 

Current zoning:  Garden Office (GO)   

Requested zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current GO zoning is, “… to provide for quality garden office development through proper 
planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 
compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 
commercial uses.” 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is, “… to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 
intersections of major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Upland Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the 
Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation network and are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property for “Residential Low Density” land uses, but notes that land 
uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for C-2 is appropriate 
for this area and the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Principles.   

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial uses that are already established to the west.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-2 zoning district.  

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-2109
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3031-B 

 

Allowable Uses:   Local Retail District C-2  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Upland Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue, 
Principal Arterial,    

Partial   

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001256










3031-B 

 

  

 

Subject property view to the east. View to the south. 

View to the west. View to the north. 

  







 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0163, for Zone Case 3291-A, a
request of OJD Engineering, LLC for John C. Owens, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2)
to Family Apartment District (A-1) at 1901 82nd Street, located east of Avenue U and south of 82nd
Street, on 3.82 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 9. 

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 6-1. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3291-A Ordinance 
Zone Case 3291-A Staff Report 
Zone Case 3291-A Documentation 















Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3291-A 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant OJD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  John C Owens 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through

Ordinance No. 2535.
• June 11, 1959: A portion of this property was rezoned to Single Family District (R-1) through Ordinance

No. 2813.
• November 18, 1976: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through

Ordinance No. 7361.
• December 13, 1984: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through

Ordinance No. 8689.
• September 9, 2016: This property was rezoned Local Retail District (C-2) through Ordinance No. 2016-

O0132.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 24
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 
This property was annexed between 1958 and 1984 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The property to the south and west is zoned Family Apartment District (A-1) and developed with apartments. To 
the north are offices on property zoned Garden Office District (GO) and homes on property zoned R-1. Finally, 
to the east is a commercial building zoned C-2 as well as vacant land zoned T. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
This property is addressed as 1901 82nd Street, located east of Avenue U and south of 82nd Street, on 3.82 acres 
of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 9. The applicant is requesting a zone change from C-2 to A-1. 

Current zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 

Requested zoning: Family Apartment District (A-1) 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2 zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 
major thoroughfares.” 

The intent of the proposed A-1 zoning is, “…to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. The 
regulations are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the proper 
environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is not to 
isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning and 
urban design.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is along 82nd Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 
2018. Principal Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional 
traffic. Speeds are relatively high on arterial streets and handle high volumes of traffic. This roadway will be 
able to adequately handle the traffic associated with the uses in the A-1 district. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use map designates this area for “Commercial” land uses. The A-1 district does not conform to 
the Future Land Use Map designation though it would be considered appropriate at an intersection node according 
to the Future Land Use Compatibility Matrix (pg. 64).  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses, though additional public improvements may be needed, as the 
property has not been platted yet. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies 

Staff Contacts 
Shane Spencer   Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2103 806-775-2109
sspencer@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A     Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3291-A 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation:  

Family Apartment District (A-1)  

The proposed development has points of access from 82nd Street 

.   

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

82nd Street, 
Principal Arterial 

Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001125












3291-A

View of adjacent property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 

View of subject property. View north.   View of adjacent property. View west. 









 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0154, for Zone Case 3432-A, a
request of Dwain Lane for Carolyn Lane Musgrave, for a Specific Use for an Event Center, on property
zoned Commercial District (C-4) and Local Retail District (C-2) at 1801 19th Street and 1904 and 1906
Avenue R, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue R, Lane Addition, Block 1, Lots 1, 2, 5 and 6.

Item Summary
On November 1, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 28, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3432-A Ordinance 
Zone Case 3432-A Staff Report 
Zone Case 3432-A Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3432-A 
City Council Meeting November 1, 2021 

Applicant Dwain Lane 

Property Owner  Carolyn Lane Musgrave 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• February 7, 1921: This property was annexed through the adoption of an Official Map of the City of

Lubbock through Ordinance No. 197.
• March 13, 1941, Original Zoning Ordinance: This property was zoned Commercial District (District H) and

Two-Family District (District B) through Ordinance No. 661.
• December 22, 1960, Zone Case 0884: This property was zoned Commercial District (C-4) through

Ordinance No. 3320.
• March 13, 2014, Zone Case 3224: The northern section of this property was zoned Local Retail District

(C-2) through Ordinance No. 2014-O0021.
• June 8, 2021, Zone Case 3432: City Council denied a zone change from C-2 to C-4 with a Specific Use for

a Dance Hall.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 25
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1921 and was developed with a commercial building in 1941. The building 
was originally granted a certificate of occupancy as a café on January 10, 1942; and on February 6, 1974, the 
use of the building was changed to a public bar. On February 24, 1989, the bar was then turned into a game room 
and club.  

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north, east and west are zoned C-2 and have been developed with commercial buildings. 
The property to the south is zoned C-4 and is developed with a parking lot.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 1801 19th Street and 1904 and 1906 Avenue R, and is located south of 19th 
Street and west of Avenue R. The applicant is requesting a Specific Use for an Event Center.  

Local Retail District (C-2) and Commercial District (C-4) 

Specific Use for an Event Center  

Current zoning:  

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2 zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 
major thoroughfares.” 

The intent of the current C-4 zoning is “…to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which serve 
a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or federal 
highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent residential 
areas should be carefully considered.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located along 19th Street and Avenue R. 19th Street is designated as Minor Arterial by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, and Avenue R is designated as a Local street. Minor Arterial roads are designed for a 
higher intensity of traffic, and Local streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower 
speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Comprehensive 
Plan, page 87). 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use for an event center is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the 
character of the existing development.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use for an event center is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate 
adjacent to other commercial uses that are already established. The existing building was used as a club 
and game room (Crossroads) until 2017; but according to the owner, it began its use as a venue (Stiletto’s) in 
2019 and therefore it lost its nonconforming status as a bar/nightclub due to there being no alcohol sales for 
over a year. It appears that it was allowed to continue as a similar use when the current tenants occupied the 
building, and so the building retains its nonconforming status as a dance hall today. The proposed use for this 
property was previously considered to fall under the categorization of a dance hall; however, the City Council 
recently approved an amendment to the zoning ordinances to distinguish an event center from a dance hall. 
The request for an event center would bring the use of the building into conformance. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use of an event center and will not need additional public 
improvements.  

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096 806-775-2109
jhawkins@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A     Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3432-A 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation:  

Local Retail District (C-2),  Commercial District (C-4), and Specific Use District 

The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and Avenue R. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Minor Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 88 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue R 
Local, Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Two-lane, undivided, 
paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

N/A 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001256
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523










3432-A 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View west. View of adjacent property. View north. 





 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12. 
11/16/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving the method of assessment
classification for the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District, and calling for a public hearing
on December 7, 2021.  

Item Summary
Following a public hearing at the Regular City Council Meeting on October 26, 2021, the City Council
approved the creation resolution establishing the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District
(PID). The creation resolution was recorded with the Lubbock County Clerk's office on October 28,
2021, as required by state statute. 

The next step in the PID establishment process is to consider a resolution approving the classification(s)
regarding the method of assessment and to call a public hearing to consider an ordinance to levy the
assessment. All properties are identified as one classification with the method of assessment being based
on assessed values. A proposed list of property owners, addresses, valuations, assessment rates, and
assessments will be made available for review by the public in the City Secretary's office after December
7, 2021.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 






	Agenda
	2.03.__Board Appointments
	3.04.__Board Recognitions
	5.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_9.21.2021 S LMPO
	       ATT_9.22.2021 S LEDA
	       ATT_10.26.2021
	6.01.__ROW - Street Light Cable Easement, Lot 328 Hatton Place
	       ATT_Ordinance Abandon and Close a 2-foot Underground Street Light Cable Easement-Lot 328 Hatton Place
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Closure of a 2-foot USLCE - Lot 328 Hatton Place
	Sheets and Views
	FINAL PLAT


	       ATT_Map - Abandon and Close a 2 foot USLCE - Lot 328 Hatton  Place
	6.02.__Ordinance Abandon and Close portion of an Alley right-of way- Section 1 Block AK 
	       ATT_Ordinance Abandon and Close portion of an Alley right-of way- Section 1 Block AK 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Closure Portion of Alley right-of-way Sec 1 Blk AK 
	       ATT_Map - Closure of Portion of Alley right-of-way- Sec 1 Blk AK 
	6.03.__Resolution - General Warranty Deed - Day Estates LTD - Tract D Day Estates
	       ATT_Resolution - General Warranty Deed - Day Estates LTD - Tract D Day Estates
	       ATT_General Warranty Deed - Day Estates LTD - Tract D Day Estates
	       ATT_Map - Day Estates 
	6.04.__Resolution - Three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Section 26 and 30 Block AK 
	       ATT_Resolution - Three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Section 26 and 30 Block AK 
	       ATT_Parcel 19 - Street Dedication Deed - Sec 19 Blk AK - Upland Avenue
	       ATT_Parcel 107 - Street Dedication Deed - Sec 30 Blk AK - Upland Avenue 
	       ATT_Parcel 110 - Street Dedication Deed - Sec 30 Blk AK - Upland Avenue 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.05.__Amendment No. 1 to AFA with TxDOT
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1 to AFA with TxDOT, 114th Street
	       ATT_Original AFA
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail - CIP 92670 and CIP 92737
	       ATT_CIP Detail - 92670
	       ATT_CIP Detail - 92737
	6.06.__Professional Service Agreement Contract 16180 for the design of Erskine Avenue from Frankford to the West City Limits
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Service Contract
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail - 92713
	6.07.__Upland Water Line Relocation Contract 15923 with Rink's Lease Services, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract 
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	6.08.__420 E. Broadway Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	6.09.__BASF Performance Agreement 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Performance Agreement
	6.10.__ARFF Vehicle at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution - Oshkosh
	       ATT_PO 25300004 - Oshkosh
	       ATT_Waiver for ARFF Vehicle
	       ATT_Project Summary- ARFF Vehicle
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.11.__Airport Glass Replacement at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution - The Wilson Group
	       ATT_Contract 16053 The Wilson Group
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.12.__Amendment No. 3 to Contract 12643 with Esri
	       ATT_Resolution - Amendment 3 to Contract 12643
	       ATT_Amendment No. 3 to Esri Contract 12643 
	6.13.__Vehicle Windshield and Window Services 
	       ATT_Resolution - 16246 (Phares) Auto Glass Co.
	       ATT_Contract - 16246 (Phares) Auto Glass Co.
	       ATT_Resolution - 16166 (B King) Clear Vu Auto Glass
	       ATT_Contract - 16166 (B King) Clear Vu Auto Glass
	       ATT_Bid Tab - Vehicle Glass Replacement
	       ATT_Project Summary - Vehicle Glass Replacement
	6.14.__M30 Concrete Truck for Water Department
	       ATT_Resolution - Romco Equipment
	       ATT_PO 31062734 - Romco Equipment
	       ATT_CIP 92724 Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92724 Detail
	6.15.__John Deere Rough Mower for Park Maintenance 
	       ATT_Resolution - Deer and Company
	       ATT_PO 31062840 - Deere and Company
	       ATT_Budget Detail - CIP 92720
	       ATT_CIP Detail - 92720
	6.16.__4 Litter Vacuums for Park Maintenance 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.17.__Acceptance - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant (JAG)
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Award Letter
	       ATT_Program Narrative
	       ATT_Budget Narrative
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.18.__FY2021 MOU - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant (JAG)
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Interlocal Agreement
	       ATT_Program Narrative
	       ATT_Budget Narrative
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	7.01.__ZC 1624-A
	       ATT_Zone Case 1624-A Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 1624-A Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 1624-A Documentation
	7.02.__ZC 1927-C
	       ATT_Zone Case 1927-C Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 1927-C Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 1927-C Documentation
	7.03.__ZC 2538-W
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-W Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-W Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-W Documentation
	7.04.__ZC 2538-Y
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-Y Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-Y Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-Y Documentation
	7.05.__ZC 2573-S
	       ATT_Zone Case 2573-S Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2573-S Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2573-S Documentation
	7.06.__ZC 2895-Q
	       ATT_Zone Case 2895-Q Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2895-Q Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2895-Q Documentation
	7.07.__ZC 2918-B
	       ATT_Zone Case 2918-B Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2918-B Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2918-B Documentation
	7.08.__ZC 2952-D
	       ATT_Zone Case 2952-D Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2952-D Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2952-D Documentation
	7.09.__ZC 3031-B
	       ATT_Zone Case 3031-B Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3031-B Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3031-B Documentation
	7.10.__ZC 3291-A
	       ATT_Zone Case 3291-A Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3291-A Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3291-A Documentation
	7.11.__ZC 3432-A
	       ATT_Zone Case 3432-A Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3432-A Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3432-A Documentation
	7.12.__Willow Bend Villas Classification Resolution 
	       ATT_Resolution 

